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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF QOHIO
In the Matter of the
Application of The Dayton :
Power and Light Company : Cage No. (08-1094-EL-SSO
for Approval of Its :
Electric Security Plan.

In the Matter of the

Application of The Dayton :

Power and Light Company : Case No. 08-1095-EL-ATA
for Approval of Revised

Tariffs.

ITn the Matter of the

Application of The Dayton

Power and Light Company :

for Approval of Certain : Cagse No. 08-1096-EL-AAM
Accounting Authority

Pursuant to Ohio Rev.

Code §84°%05.13.

In the Matter of the

Application of The Dayton :

Power and Light Company : Case No. 08-1097-EL-UNC
for Approval of Its :

Amended Corporate

Separation Plan.

DEPCSITION
of Wilscn Gonzalez, taken before me, Julieanna
Hennebert, a Notary Public in and for the State of
Ohio, at the cffices of Chio Consumers' Counsel, Ten
West Broad Street, Sulte 1800, Columbus, Ohio, on
Friday, January 30, 20092, at 9:30 a.m.
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Page 2 Page 5
; APPEI’;RJW&E?-' o & Cox. PILL 1 WILSON GONZALEZ
Bi';r'-cfaf!es : Farxf.kf e 2 bern_g by me first duly sworn, as herelnafter
3 500 Courthouse Plazd, SW 3 certified, deposes and says as follows:
10 North Ludiow Street 4 EXAMINATION
4 Dayton, Dhio 45402 5 BY MR. FARUKI:
5 Cn behalf of the Applicant. o f
: Janien Mgde"'owggden g Q | Morning, Mr. Gonzalez, wa've met
Ohio Consumers’ Counsel previously. . :
7 By Mr. Michzel Idzkowski 8 A, Morning, Mr. Faruki,
Mr. Gregory 1. Poulos 9 Q. Teli us your full name and where you work
8 10 west Braad Street, Suite 1800 10 please.
9 Columbus, Ohia 43215 1i A. My full name is Wilson Gonzalez. I work
On behalf of the Residential Consumers of 12 for the Qffice of the Ohie Consumers' Counsel,
10 The Dayton Porver and Light. 13 Q. How long have you worked for OCC?
11 14 A. T'we worked since 2004 I believe.
2 15 Q. Refore that where were you employe?
14 16 A. 1 worked for American Electric Power,
15 17 Q. For how long?
& 18 A. Sinca from '96 to 2002,
i; 1% Q. At the time you left what was your
19 20 position?
0 21 A. 1was I think market research consultant
b 22 or something.
§§ 23 Q. Inwhat part of the company?
1 24 A. Tworked my last stint at the company was
25 25  with department of economic development.
Page 3 Page 6 |
1 Friday Morning Session, 1 Q. How long did you have that position?
2 January 30, 2009. 2 A. T would say about three years.
3 --- 3 Q. Before that what was your position?
4 STIPULATIONS 4 A, Twas a profitability analyst.
5 1t is stipulated by and between counsel for 5 Q. What department or group?
B the respective parties that the deposition of Wilson V] A. Thatwas in I would say market, market
7 Gonzalez, awitness called by the the Applicant 7 services,
B under the applicable Ru'es of Civil Procadure, may he 8 Q. How long did you have that?
& reduced Lo writing in stenotypy by the Notary, whose 9 - A, I would say periaps two years,
10 notes thereafter may be transceribed out of the 10 Q. Approximate is fine,
11 presence of the wikness; and that proof of the 11 A, Yeah.
12 official character and qualification of the Notary is 12 Q. And before that?
13 waived. 13 A. ['worked with business services part of
14 14 the company supporting national accounts, business
15 -- 15  accounts.
16 15 Q. What were your duties there? Was this a
17 17 sales position?
18 18 A. No. 1t was an analytical position. It
1% 19 started as business services supperting national
20 20 accounts and just business services. So a lot of it
21 21 was research related.
37 22 [ atso while I was in business services
23 23 that's when we worked with other large accounts that
24 24 ware Interested in at that Bme in procuring power.
25 25 They saw the advent of deregulation and I
Page 4 Page 7
1 INDEX 1 was on the team and we worked for like geaeration
2 --- 2 department to respond to RFPs, and my role there was
3 DP&L EXHIBIT 1DENTIFIED 3 atthat point we were trying to add value to the
4 51 - Testimony of Mr. Gonzalez 10 4 product s0 we were developing demand side management.
5 52 - Ohic Revised Code 4928.143 94 5 We had relationships with energy service
] 6 companies and we were developing value added energy
7 --- 7 efficiency products for Jarger customers.
8 8 Q. And how long were you in that position?
9 g A, With business services 1 said
10 10  approximately about around two years,
11 11 Q. Gelng back in time before that what were
12 12 you doing?
i3 13 A. 1 worked with the Columbia Gas
i4 14 distribution system.
5 15 Q. What did you do for Columbia Gas?
16 i6 A. 1 started working in their corparate
17 17 planning department, was basically the knowledge base
18 18  around energy efficiency at Columbia at that
19 19 particular time,
20 20 We ended up -- I was the sacond hired and
21 21 we ended up staffing up to undertake demand side
22 22 management programs in a himber of our states and
23 23 respond to initiatives, legislative and regulatory
24 24 initiatives,
25 25 The one thing 15 | statted at corporate
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Wilson Gonzalez

Page 8 Page i1
1 planning and then moved to ance we did the analytical 1 deslgning programs and we went through the whole
2 work and justification for the energy efficiency 2 process of designing programs, implementing programs,
3 program we were reorganized and were placed in the 3 looking at cost recovery issues, monitaring and
4 marketing department because then the programs were 4 evaluation,
5 going to be implemented, so, 5 So the full cycle of demand side
6 Q. How long were you in the marketing 6  management services. So that was a very I would say
7 department then? 7 broad experience but very detailed.
8 A. [ would say it was probably bwo years B For example, on one company I actually --
9 analytic, three years implementation. Approximately, 3 for Electric llluminating I ran the models, the cost
10 Q. So this would have been 1990-'91 through 10 production models to determine the cost-effectiveness
11 '967 11 for their programs, et cetera.
12 A '92 to '96, yes. 12 And then obviously during the
13 Q. Before Columbia Gas what was your 13 implementation phase we wera very invalved in
14 position? 14 monitering that, discussing with companies, and just
15 A, Senior economist at the Connecticut 15  sharing information. And at Columbia Gas T was an
16  Energy Cffice, office of policy and management, which 16 implementer.
17 was the governor's policy exacutive office, budget 17 Q. And I want to leave aside design and just
18 office. 18 focus on implementation.
19 Q. Sothat was related to the governar or 19 A. Uh-huh.
20 the executive, not to the public service commission 20 Q. And [ want to leave aside what other
21 therg? 21 people did and fecus on what you did.
22 A, Yes, All they -- we intervened in many 12 Can you tell me your experience in
23 cases from an energy policy perspective and we were 23 implementing such programs?
24 very suppottive of the -- we worked with energy, 24 A. Yeah, I have firsthand experience in
25 efficiency energy. 25 implementing programs. When [ came to Columbia Gas
Page 9 Page 12
1 Q. What years were those that you — 1 we, like I mentioned earler, we did some analytical
2 A, [ would say '86 thraugh "92. 2 work at corporate planning justifylng the economics
3 Q. Did you tell me you left AEP in '02? 3 of the program. And then when 1 went to the
4 A. That's carrect, the end of '02, last day 4 marketing department, [ was In charge of a number of
5  of 02, 5 programs. We operated in Manyand and Virginia, so.
) Q. And then what did you do between that 6 Q. What programs were you in charge of?
7 point and when you joined GCC? ? A, 1 would say it was -~ we had a
8 A, 1did various jobs, [ did substitute 8  residential new construction program, we had a
9 teaching, ! did -- 1 worked on -- for a research firm 9 residential appllance In the sense of we were
10 very shortly doing sampling research trying ko get -- i0  promoting efficient appliances such as condensing
11 survey research, and then I also worked at -- had a 11 furnaces, 90 percent efficient furnaces,
12 very brief stint with the office of [ think Children i2 Q. Was this a rebate program or what kind of
13 and Family Services at the state, That was a 13 program?
14 computer position. 14 A. The furnace program was a rebate type
15 0, So from 2002 to 2004 when you jeined QCC 15 program but we offered a rebate to the custamers. We
16 were you sort of hetween jobs? 16 alsp offered some incentive to the HYAC trade allies,
17 A, 1would say, yes, until - yeah, early 17  the HVAC cantractors, worked very closely with them
18 2004 I did get the -- the job with Family Services 18  and offered training.
19  was a full-time job. 1% Very simply, in Virginia we might have
20 Q. When you -- I'll withdraw that. 20 had some other things that we packaged in there, like
21 What is the department that you're in now 21 thermostats, those types of activities. Qbviously
22 at Oce? 22 with the new construction program & was much more
23 A, I'min the analytical department. 23 sophisticated.
24 Q. How many people are in that? 24 1 developed a program that had three
25 A. Fifteen maybe, off the top of my head. 25  prongs; we had a prescriptive, a trade-off In terms
Page 10 Page 13
1 Q. Whe heads that department? 1 of meeting the goals of the program, the hiring of
2 A.  Aster Adams. 2 the efficiency usage, and then I actually developed a
3 Q. s that your boss or do you report to 3 performance base where the computer madel that [
4 somebody else? 4 would run and if an architect or & builder would send
5 A. That's my boss, yes. 5 me the specs of the house and I would model with the
[ (Exhibit marked.) 6 particular -- and come out with a determination
7 Q. You have a copy of your testimeny which 7 whether it met the program reguirements,
B our reporter has marked as DP&L Exhibit 51 In front 8 Q. From your experience with both the
9 of you, right? 9  collaberative efforts that you talked about and the
1G A, Yes. 10 implementation of the pregrams that you described,
11 G, Let me ask you some general questions if 11  have you developad any principles that your beligve
12 Ican, 12 should govern the design of DSM and energy efficiency
13 To what axtent have you been inwolved in 13 programs?
14  implementation of DSM or energy efficiency programs 14 A. It's a very general question.
15  as opposed to their design? 15 Q. Some of mine are and some are not.
16 A. [ 'would say I've had quite a bit of 16 A, Off the top of my head chviously you
17 experience. I've had both experience from the 17 would want & program that is well managed, 1 think
1B outside in tarms of being -- in Connecticut we ware 18  certain principles are -- all the programs we have we
19 one of the first states to establish collaborative 19  monitor very carefully it both from a prospective,
2D processes and our office, as 1 mentioned, was very 20 fe., how is the program being delivered, getting
21 involved. 21 feedback from the different parties even internally
22 We sponsored witnesses, we actually 22 within the company.
23 sponsored facilitators, we co-shared in a 23 Is a rebate being caught on time in the
24 collaborative process, it was a utility driven 24 communications loop, is the cost energy alerted so if
25 process, and in that process we worked on hands on 25  they get a call and so forth and working with our

3 (Pages 8 to 13)
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Page 14 Page 17 |-
1 trade allies is the person being responsive te your 1 A, That may be ona aspect. [ think if you :
2 needs information, Are we providing sufficient 2 were to say generally, it's just sharing of
3 ftraining, so. 3 information, you know, these programs have so many
4 It was very important to -- especially 4 parameters that I really think it behooves the
5  the first time you launch a program, to go through a 5 company to bring in expertise outside of their - and
6 very strict process evaluation to make sure that the 6 to bring in other stakehalders that might have
7 program Is operating things that bottleneck that crop 7  different perspectives and just come te an agreement,
8 up, you look Lo resolve and make them efficiently, 8 Especially when there's -- at least in
3 So I think the evaluation pracess is very 9 terms of the overall goal Is we want these programs
10 importent and obviausly -- are your questions limited 10 to be successful,
11 to implementation issues? 11 Q. Yes
12 Q. That one wasn't. What T want to know is 12 A. So Idon't see a collaborative as being
13 if you have developed some general principles that 13 necessarily an adversarial proceeding as this has
14 you would apply to the design of energy efficiency or 14 become but more of a gathering of ideas and peaple,
i5 DSM programs, If not, that's fine, we'll go on, 15 comgany, and stakeholders wanting to promote.
i6 A. That's a long discusslon, But 1 would 16 Q. To share fdeas.
17  you know, it's cbviously wa -- with a design program 17 A, To share ideas to make the program
i8 one of the things you look at Is what market fallure 18 successful. I think everybody wants the programs to
19 you're trying to address. 19 be successful.
20 I mean, that's one of the biggest issues 20 Q. That's a common goal to baoth the utility
21 with energy efficiency and why we believe utility 21 and anybody efse in the collaborabive should have.
22 intervention is -- that's the case for utility 22 A, Correct.
23 intervention into what we consider a market. 23 Q. With regard to your testimony in this
24 I mean, the reason [ think the public 24 case, what parts of DP&L's filing did you read for
25  policy justification for Is that it's been pervasive 25 your work in this case?
Page 15 Page 18
1 market barriers that have thwarted customers, you and 1 A. ['would say I read mainly Book 11, Beok
2 1, to logk at programs. 2 IIL. I probably read all the books but I mean in
3 Q. And what are these market barriers you're 3 terms of Iooking at them In more detail, 1 looked at
4 talking about? 4 the - obviously my testimony deals predominantly
5 A, There's a whole st in the literature, 5  with the cost recoverles, I was interested In looking
6 1 could name a couple of the -- abviously one would 6 atthat section.
7  be capital constraints that customers have in terms 7 But 1 did look at the filings and locked
8 ofbeing able ta put up the incremental costs of a 8  at the some of the discovery that perteined to the
9  measure, even though the measure i cost-effective, 9 cost recovery or demand side management
10 will have a very reasonable payback, but just that 10 Q. You're not a lawyer; is that carrect?
i1 first cost hurdle. un A, Thatis correct,
12 There's split incentives type of market 12 Q. Are you an econamist?
13 barrier. You could have -- you could be a renter and 13 A, Yes, Iam,
14 you're the one who is paying the bill, yet your 14 Q. Are your opinions in this case limited to
15 fandlord is the one who owns the facility, That's a 15 dealing with the residential customers?
16  very pervasivc ane. 16 A, T would say cost racovery to the extent
17 There's issues with information on 17 that all customers -~ I think your could say my
18  reliability of the products, what products are 18  testimony transcends just residental,
19 available. Those types of constraints. And so those 19 Q. And to the extent it transcends
20 are some of the major ones. 20  residential customers, & is because of your analysis
21 Q. You menticned collaborative and 1 wantad 21 of cost recovery for the programs; is that accurate?
22 to ask a couple of questions about that. Am 1 22 A, Yes, 1 believe some of the cost recovery
23 correct that you believe that a collaborative process 23 is not bounded by residential, So my recommendation
24 wauld be useful with regard to Dayton Power and 24 would likewise not be bounded.
25 Light? 25 Q. With regard to the programs or the set of
Page 16 Page 19
1 A, Yes, I'e had extensive experience in 1 programs that DP&L has proposed in its filing, do you
2 differant states, in fact, I think in Ohio all the 2 like the programs generally?
3 gas companies have developed collaboratives, 3 A, I believe we, you know, I guess Witness
4 Also In Duke T thought we had a very 4 Sawmiller kas made recommendations on the programs
5  successful collaborative process when they made their 5 and [ would -- I'm in agregament with hig
6 filing, their original filing in 2008, [ thought we 6 recommendations,
7 dealt with a plethora of issues that DSM filing 7 Q. That didn't quite answer my question
B8  entails. 8  thougi.
9 And then at AEP we started a 9 You said you've read the filing. Are
10 collaborative process that's been operating for 10 these the types of pragrams that you believe should
11 would say close to two manths. il beimplemented?
12 T believe in Ohio Dayten Power and Light i2 A. 1bealieve some of the -- I believe the
13 aside from First Energy, which is another category, 1 i3  programs that DPRL has filed, you know, ganerally
14 think Dayton Power and Light is the only company that 14 speaking, are some of the praograms that are being
15 decided not to engage in a collaborative, 15 implemented in other states and some that have
15 Q. You're aware DP&L had a collaborative 16  successful records.
17 vyears ago. 17 But we've caveated and there was some
18 A. [ was told that, yes. 18 programs we thought we would have interest in, [
19 Q. With regard to -- 19 know Witness Sawmiller mentions it.
20 (Mr. Poulos jeins the deposition.) 20 Q. Soyoure not expressing opinions with
21 Q. With regard to the collaboratives and the 21 regard bo individual programs in this case in terms
22 purpose, let me ask a couple of questians. As 22 of thelr desirability?
23 understand your view, one of the purposes of the 23 A, Interms of their desirability?
24 collaborative would be to make recormendations on 24 Q. Yes
25  pragrams that should be tried or developed? 25 A, Again, my testimony deals with cost

4 (Pages 14 to 19)

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio 614-224-0481



Wilson Gonzalez

Page 20 Page 23
1 recovary and actually just soime of the cost elements 1 base any of its actions on speculation or guesswork,
2 in the programs. So, and 1 support the testimony of 2 Seems ta me an unremarkable propasitian,
3 Witness Sawmiller, 3 but maybe he'll have a different view.
4 Q. Didn't answer my question. 1 don't want 4 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Company should not base
5 to be surprised later if you are offering opinions in 5 its -- if you have an gpinion on that, go ahead and
6 this case with regard to the desirability of any of 6 answer.
7 these programs. 7 A, Is it specific to program design,
8 If you're not, no problem, telt me you're 8 implementation? Is it the whole kit and caboodle?
9 not and then another witness will, But if you have 9 Q. Any of those, Don't you agree with me
10 opinions about that, I'd like to know them. 10 that in making decisions about program design or
1 MR, [DZKOWSKI: You mean the desirability 11  implamentaticn the company ought net to be making its
12 of the programs specifically as filed or just the 12 decisions based upen guesswork?
13 Lypes of programs? 13 A. As a general proposition, yeah, that
14 MR, FARUKI; Either one. I'm just not 14 would seem to be -- make sense. 1 would add that in
15 sure what his opinions are. Given his background I'd 15  fact when I was at Columbia Gas, we took that
16 like to know what the baundary of his testimony is in 16  principle to heart and when we were going to
17  this case versus some other witness, Maybe 17 undertake a program, we actually generated data from
18  Mr. Sawmiller or maybe somebody else. 18  our trade allies and very specific to our service
19 Q. You understand what I'm asking? 19  territory.
20 A. Yes, And based on the clarification of 20 So, for example, we might as a first
21 my atterney, T would say the more general, 15 more 21 approximation use data from other utilities or the
22 general answer, 22 databases and bring In consultants. Buk In the last
23 Q. You have to give me your more general, ?3  instance we also would do some internal data of our
24 nothis. Sogo ahead. 24 senvice territory and find out -- and usually that
25 A, Can you read back what my -- that was on 25  was some of the best data. Because it was very
Page 21 Page 24 |.
1 the record, right? 1 sperific fo the whole account.
2 0. Yes, It's all on the record. 2 Q. You recognized that DP&L has faken each
3 THE WITNESS: Can you read back what my 3 of the steps you just described in developing these
4 attorney mentioned? 4 programs?
5 {Record read.) 5 A, T'wasn't aware that they actually did
6 A. es, and my answer weuld he generally on 6 internal -- 1 haven't seen information they were
7 the types of programs. More general. 7 undertaking the type of trade ally analytical data
B Q. And what is your opinion in that regard? 8 development,
9 A. As1--1amin agreement with the 9 Q. So you haven't read the depositions in
10 comments made specifically in Witness Sawmiller and I 10 this ease that OCC has taken wherein people talked
11 think in terms of some of the programs the company is 11 about doing exactly that?
12 leoking to -- in @ general sense looking to implement 12 A, Thave read --
13 on residential and some of the other classes, as [ 13 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Can you be more specific
14 said, those are programs that have been filed in 14 what depositions you're talking about?
15 aother places and I think they would make up what 1 15 Q. Sure. Marla Bubp for one. There's
16 would think would be a portfolio of grograms, 16 plenty of testimony in this case, Mr. Gonzalez, about
17 Q. A portfolio of programs that should 17 DPR&i meeting with vendors and HVAC installers and
18 enable the targets in the statute to ba mat? 18 people [ke that. You'va not read any of that?
19 A, I think they would help, They would help 19 A. My question is meeting is different then
20 the targets to be met. T mean, I'm not making a 20 going and working with them to collect back data on
21 blanket statement that no other programs should be in 21 their client sales, very detailed information,
22 or a program should be taken out, 22 Q. That's been done toa,
23 I'm just saying those are the types of 23 My guestion again, have you read the
24 programs if you were to look arcund the country of 24 depositions in this case? Don't duck my guestion,
25 utilities an taking energy efficiency programs, those 25  you've read them ar you haven't.
Page 22 Page 25 |-
1 are in the mix, 1 A, I'm not ducking your quastion.
2 Q. On a different topic, you agree that you 2 Q. Have you read it?
3 shoutd not base any of your opinions on speculation 3 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Read It or read them.
4 ar guesswork, right? 4 Q. Any of the depositions in this case. I'm
5 A. That's probably net a good principle. 5 not sure why this is such a hard question.
6 Yes. 6 A, No, I'm just -- I've read the depositions
7 Q. And you also agree that DP&L should not 7  of Mr. Zabors, and again, since my testimony speaks
8  base its actions with regard to these pragrams on 8 lo the cost recovery, I was interested in the
9 speculation or guesswork, You agree with that? 9 depositions of Seger-Lawson and 1 haven't received
10 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Can you read that 10  that and 1 was unable ta attend or privy to that
11 question back please? 11 particular deposition through the phone.
12 {Record read.) 12 Q. So the two depositions you've read are
13 MR, IDZKOWSKI: 1s it clear what actions 13 Mr. Zabors and Ms. Seger-Lawson?
14 we're taking about, Charlie? 14 A, Mo, [ haven't read Ms. Seger-Lawson
i5 MR. FARUKI: Actions with regard to these 15  because that just happened was that last Friday?
i6  programs. 16 Q. So it would be Mr. Zahors?
17 MR, IDZKOWSKY: In the future, s future i7 A, 1hink Mr. Zabois was the one 1 was able
18 actions or its past actions? 8 lo.
19 MR. FARUKI: Either one. 19 Q. Any others?
20 MR. IDZKOWSKI: 1 don't know if he can 20 A. I did attend briefly the deposition of
21 speculate on what DP&L's future actions are going to 21 Ms. Garrison.
22 be. 22 Q. On a different subject, were you inyolved
23 MR, FARUKI: It's not the guestion, 1I'm 23 in the pracess that led to Senate Bill 2217
24 asking him if he agrees that in conducting itself 24 A, What do you mean by involvement?
25  with regard to these programs, the company should not 25 Q. Did you have any invofvement in that
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Page 26 Page 29
1 process whatsoever? 1 people, may exist.
2 A, Internally or externally? 2 I'm not asking about attorney/ckent
3 Q. Either one, 3 privilege, I'm asking what his relationship with the
4 A. That was a major bill in Ohio. So our 4 legistature was. There's no privilege issue here.
5  office was very involved in that particalar piece of 5 BY MR, FARUKI:
6 legislation. ) Q. You understand my question?
7 And we suppert it, s my testimony 7 MR, IDZKOWSKI: I think he can answer
8  stales, we support it on a -- Consumers' Counsel had 8 that question.
9 testimony before the legislative body. 9 Do you understand that question, Wilsan?
10 Q. 1wasn't asking about OCC though, T was 10 A. Yeah, I'm just trying to -- the whole
i1  asking about you. Were you involved personally? 11 process was you would go down to the legislature, T
12 A, Iwould say 1 met with legistators, 1 12 gave my presentation, first of all, and that was more
13 presented energy efficiency testimony befare the I 13 general supportive of enargy efficiency,
14 believe it was the House Subcommittee on alternative 14 AL that particular polnt we weren't even
15  energy. 15 talking targets, we were talking we wanted in the
16 Q. Generally speaking, what was the subject 16 Bill.
i7  matter of your testimany? 17 So while I'm not certain, I don't recall
i8 A. My testimony was in support of energy 18 particularly, I'm not sure whether a recommendation
19 efficiency. Because prior to that the bills were 19 on @ target was made on my official presentation.
20 concentrating only on alternative energy and [ 20 However, in subsequent sessions,
21 belleve the energy afficiency was the cheapest 2L especially on the House slde, which Is where energy
22 resource that we should -- that the state should 22 efficiency was really -- I would say the benchmarks
23 pursue. 23 were intreduced as oppesed to the original Senate
24 Q. Did you testify about targets that should 24 Bill, we had discussions and back and forth with the
25  beset? 25 different legislative chairmen as well as the
Page 27 Page 30
1 A. [ don't recall specifically but T know 1 utiliies there,
2 when energy efficiency was introduced into the Bill I 2 Q. Did you give them pieces of paper?
3 made recommendations as to what the targets should be 3 A, T know we talked things orally. My
4 and [ think the end result in the Bill was very close 4 impression is at the end of the day we probably made
5  to the recommendations. 5 arecommendation as to actval benchmark targets.
6 Q. That you madea? 6 And if T recall, we hasically
? A, That's correct. Through our office, that 7 recommendad -- we basically recommended what Governor
8  our office made, 8  Stiickland has just signed gnto fn the midwest
=] Q. When you made -- you have to keep your 9 governors, they had positive 22 percent, I believe
10 voice up, sir, 10 like 2025,
i1 A, Yes, i1 The cnly difference between their
12 Q. When you made these recommendations as to 12 recommendations and what happened in our building Is
13 the target levels, was that in a piece of testimony 13 they weran't going to ramp up, they were just going
14 ar something else written? 14 to come on in later years.
15 A, 1think it was -- was that lawyer/client 15 And we felt that ramping up starting at a
16  privilege? 16 small -- al a lower rate, .3 and .5 and ramping up
17 MR. [DZKOWSKI: Could you repeat the 17 made a lot more sense 10 get ta these goals, because
18  question please? 18  otherwise if you're trying to get 1 percent of loatl
13 Q. Not If you made it outside your office, 13 in one year, that's not gaing to work.
20 Tn other words, when you talked to the legisfator did 20 Q. Right,
21 you do that orally or was that in a piece of 21 A, Sothat was the nature of the discussion.
22 testirmony or a filing? 22 We brought in what the goverrors had signed anto and
23 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Before you answer could 23 we tried to ratipnalize it on the lower end to give
24 you read the question back please, Julle. 24 the utllitles a chance to ramp up their programs, get
25 (Record read.) 25 the knowledge developed, the construction and all the
Page 28 Page 31 |:
1 MR, IDZKOWSKI: You mean submitted to 1 things that go into,
2 the - 2 Q. To use your term, was the ramping up
3 MR, FARUKI: I don't know. That's why 3 leval, if I can use that term?
4 I'm asking., For some reason he's reluctant to tell q A, Right,
5 me what It was. 5 Q. Was that idea or were the numbers in the
6 MR, IDZKOWSK]: He's trying to figure out 6 ramping up level the ones that you suggested?
7 if they're attorney/client privilege. 7 A. 1 think those were the ones that our
8 MR. FARUKL: If you went aver to the B office suggested. [ think technically -- we worked
9 legistator and spoke there, that's not 9 with consultants in the past so we had an idea of
10 attorney/client privifege. 10 what type of numbers we were -- had been successful
11 MR, IDZKOWSKI: No, butif he sent a memo 11 inother areas and just based on my experience and,
12 to his attorney on an issug, he received some advice, 12 like I said, we wanted to work, we have to -- the
13 it should be. 12 history of the DSM programs is that you ramp up.
14 MR. FARUKL: That's not what I asked him, 14 Q. Were there types of programs that you had
15 MR. IDZKOWSKT: T think your question was 15 In mind when you were suggesting this ramping up that
16  very broad. He's already indicated, Chariie, that 16 would enable a utility to meet those numbers?
17 he's trying to answer vour guestion but he's trying 17 A, Ithink, generally speaking, it's a
18 tofigure out if it's attorney/client. 18 portfolio of programs that have been undartaken in
19 MR. FARUKL; What he said was he went 19 other jurisdiction.
20 over to the legislature and testified and the 20 When I was In Connecticut and we workad
21 ultimate targets that were adopted were close to what 21 very closely with United Tlluminating Utilities, they
22 he recommended, 22 had a slete of residential programs, commercial
23 And what F'm trying to figure out is what 23 programs, and industrial programs,
24 pieces of paper or etectronic communication between 24 Q. Help me gut here, can you be more
25  him the General Assembly, legislative aids, other 25 specific as to the type of programs for residential
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Page 32 Page 35
1 customers, since that's whe your offlce represents, 1 service territory occuples. :
2 that you had in mind £hat would meet these ramped up 2 Is it & market that has had a lot of
3 numbers? 3 influence or a lot of energy efficlency programs in
4 A, Ithink there's a number of market 4 the past? Isit a market that has been dormant for a
5 segments within residential that you want to target. 5  while and the infrastructure is not there to develop
6 5o obviously there's the retrofit market, which is 6 these programs? Perhaps that's something you have to
7 existing homas, 7 do before any of these programs take off.
8 That's really 40 percent of all energies 8 Q. Are the btypes of programs that DP&L is
9 usedin homes. It's @ very important market segment 9 suggesting here ones that would address each of your
10 and It's one of the largest market segments. 10 four market segments; agaln retrefit, replace, new
11 So I would think some type of retrofit 11 construction, and low-income?
12 home performance type pregram that they go in and 12 A. If I had -- trying to recall again, my
13 wundertaking a diagnostic audit and provide incentives 13  testtmony was focused en the cost recovery of the
11 and make recommendations. 14 company,
15 Q. Whnat other segments? 15 I'm trying to recall the programs the
16 A, I would say there's also the replacement 16  company indicated but T know, for example, I know
17 market segment where gzople -- gither a piece of 17  thak the company wasn't in - it's filing didn't make
i8 appliance or equipment fails. 18 a whole house retrofit program, whole perfermance
1% S0 in that particular point you want to 19 program available to all residential customers. That
20 have your trade allies and be able to inform 20 was problematic.
21 customers that instead of buying the traditional 21 Q. Anything else you'd Identify that was
22 appliance, they can buy & more efficient appliance 22 problematic?
23 and you would want to target that market. 23 A. I would go to the testimony of for the
24 There's usually some targeting of new 24 most part Dan Sawmiller has identified some desfan
25 construction. You want to build a house first -- you 25  features that we would want to recommend an
Page 33 Page 36
1 want to build the heuse carrectly the first time 1 alternative course of action,
2 because it's more costly to go into the house later, 2 Q. Let me a3k you some questions about your
3 Sp you want to make sure that the installation is put 31 prefiled -- one more question.
4 in right. 4 Is it accurate that you do not express an
5 Sa, [ mean, you would treat that -- 5  opinion in this case as to whether or not you think
6 there's the low-Income population that you also -- 6 the programs that DP&L has propased would meet the
7 it's a very important population, Perhans fixed 7 targets?
8 income is other communities that have been targeted, 8 A. T express no opinion on that very narraw
9 3. So far we have retrofit, replacement, new 9  question,
10 construction, and low-income as market segments. Any 10 Q. And vou have your testimony handy?
11 others? 11 A. Yes, Ido. Canl--ch, you know, the
12 A, Twould say those would be the major 12 burden of proof is an the company and the company is
13 segments that produce -- you know, that consume -- 13  the one that has to meet the mandates and the
14 where customers reduce their bills, 14 requirements.
15 Q. Do you have a list of the types cf 15 Q. I'm asking if have you an opinion on
16 programs that you believe for any of these -~ any or 16 that. And I take it you do not.
17 all of these sagments would meet the targets that 17 A. What I said was T den't -- I didn't focus
i8 you're talking about? 18  on that because I know it's incumbent on the company
19 A, Do [ have any -- I would have the types 19 to meet those targets,
20 of programs that I've talked about would go into the 20 So that's a very strong motivation that
21 mix, would go into a portfelio of programs, It may 21 the company has, sa I fooked places where the company
22 be the - we talked about appliance programs, also it 22 may have motivations in other areas. So that's why I
23 could be lighting. Lighting is a program that's also 23 concentrated on cost recovery in this particular
24 the lighting end use. Sometimes you target an end 24 case.
23 use. 25 @. But again, my question is, is it accurate
Page 34 Page 37 |
1 Q. Maybe my question wasn't clear, 1 that you are not expressing an opinion in this case .
2 A Ckay. 2 onwhether the programs that DP&L has praposed will
3 Q. Tunderstand these market segrents you 3 enable the company to meet the targets?
4 gave me. Now I'm asking are you able to list for me 4 MR, IDZKOWSKIL: I'm geing to cbject as
5  the types of programs that you helieve would meet the 5 asked and answered. 1think he's given an answer Lo
5 targets that you're talking about for any of these @ this question, Charlie,
7 categories? 7 Q. Are you expressing that opinion or not?
] A. There are a number ¢of pragrams that could & If you don't have one on that subject in this case,
% be used to meet the targets., I mean, there's quite a 9 that's fine.
10 number of programs that can be concelvad, designed, 10 A, You asked me that question already and T
11  and implemented, 11  answered it.
12 Q. And my question is can you list them far 12 Q. You have fo answar it again,
13 me? 13 MR, IDZKOWSKI: 1s this question
14 A, [ could list them generally, the types of 14 different than the one he just answered?
15 programs. I would develop programs that target those 15 MR, FARUKI; Mg, I'm trying to get -~
16 end uses, 16 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Ts this the same
17 S0 [ mentioned -- already mentioned home 17 question?
18 performance, dealing with the retrofit market, 18 MR. FARUKT: I'm trying to get a stralght
19 dealing with the replacement market. You might have 19 answer as to whether ha's offering an epinion or
20 arebate program, you may have some type of program 20 whether the qualification he added fs disguising some
2} to deal with lighting, Could be rebate, could be huy 21 opinion he has.
22 down, could be coupon based. Could be a2 brochure, 22 MR, IDIKOWSKE: Well, I think he said in
23 There's many ways ta -- yau know, you 23 response to your narrow question he gave an opinion.
24 have to know the specifics of your service territory 24 Orgave an answer.
25  and you have to know whal stage of the market your 25 MR. FARUKI; He didn't give an opinlon.
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Page 38 Page 41
1 MR, IDZKOWSK]: Right. 1 don't know that 1 aven,
2 he's-- 2 Q. Page4--
3 THE WITNESS: We can read back the 3 A. Let me make a note of that,
4 original question. 4 MR. IDZKOWSKI: You said you would e-mail
5 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Can you read back the 5 us that request?
& question. 6 MR, FARUKI: Yeah. It will be easier.
7 {Record read.) 7 MR. IDZKOWSKI; Certainly would be,
8 BY MR. FARUKL: 8 we'll make notes but we'd like — we'll be glad to
9 Q. Seeg, that response [ didn't focus on -- 9 cooperate with that,
10 thatis not @ answer to my question, 10 Q. You're on page 4?
i1 A. Yeah, but 1 had answered the question 11 A, Yes,
12 before, that's what I'm saying. 12 Q. Letme ask some questions about the
13 Q. And again, 1 want my record to be clear, 13 renewable energy. Renewable eénergy questions at the
14 Is it accurate that you are not offering 14 hottem of page 4.
15  an opinian in this case as to whether the programs 15 A Yes.
16  that DP&L has proposed will meet the targets? 16 Q. First of all, can you tell me what an REC
17 A, T'll answer the same way, that for that 17 is, R-E-C?
18 narrow perspective, for that narrow bounds of that 18 A, Yes, REC is usually a renewable energy
19 question, yes. 19 certificate. And sometimes people say renawable
20 Q. Okay. Your kestimony - 20 energy credit, But it's usually used -- both fitles
21 A, Yes. 21 are used Interchangeably. And it's basically a test
22 Q. Ifyou can turn to page 2, line 18. 22 tothe attributes, the non-energy attributes of
23 On line 18 you speak about conducting 23 renewable energy.
24 numerous cost benefit analyses while you weare at AEP, 29 Q. It's a cerificate that can be bought and
25 doyou see that? 25 sold and traded in the marketplace, right?
Page 39 Page 42
1 A. Yes, 1do, 1 A. That's correct, Both voluntary and :
2 Q. And you agree with ime that a cost benefit 2 mandatory markets renewable energy credits,
3 analysis is & standard analytical tool? 3 Q. And you agree that a REC generates the
4 A, Itis an analytleal tonl that's used. 4 renewable attributes of the generation --
5 Q. Widely used? 5 A, Generally speaking, yes,
6 A, [ would say it probably is widely used. 6 (. Are these RECs in certain denominations
7 Q. On page 3, iine &, you refer In that 7 typically?
8  bullet an line & ta testimeny of yows before the 8 A. Yes. One megawatt hour.
9 Chio House Alternative Energy Committee in support of 9 Q. You suggest in llne 17 and 18 that "DP&L
10 energy efficiency. When would that have been? 13  develop a standard renewable engrgy credit purchase
1 A. Tt would have been last year [ think, I 11 contract.”
12 want o say while there was discussions an the Senate 12 Tell me what your thought is there,
13 end of 221 and the House was -- in parallel was 13 A. My thought is that [ understand the DP&L
14 having discussions. So It had to be early 2008, 14  has gane out with the RFPs and so on. My concern and
15 Q. So this was 221 related. 15 concern of our office is we represent residential
16 A, Correct. 16  customers, we're aftaid that residential customers
17 Q. And so was the one that begins on line 8. 17 are going to be shut out or it is a possibility they
18 A, Yes, Well -- yes, yes. 18  could be shut out of participating in helping the
19 Q. Was this written testimony or oral 19 whillty meet Its renewable energy goals.
20 testimony? 20 And we think both from -- obviously we
21 A, Itwes -- 21 represent the residential class, we've always
22 Q. Or both. 22 supported net metering, and to the extent that we
23 A. It was both, T gave it orally, it was a 23 want to support the job employment impacts of
24 PawerPolnt presentation, 24 renewable.
25 Q. And was that true with both the bullet 25 Sa my recommendation is in light of if
Page 40 Page 43
1 that begins on line 6 and the one that begins on line 1 this type of program is not developed, there's a
2 87 2 possibility that residential customers will not be
3 A, No. Theline 8 is more assisted whereas 3 partof the renewable energy mandate, .
4 the first - line 6 specifically mentions and I went 9 Q. So to have them be part of the renewable ;
5  befere the body and testified, 5 energy mandate, you're suggesting a standard purchase
6 MR, FARUKI: Mike, I'll send you an 6  contract for customer-sited renewable energy.
7 e-mail but I'm going to make a request for the 7 A, Yes,
8  testimony there or the PowerPoint presentation, if 8 Q. And the customer-sited renewable energy
9 that's what it was, 9 you refer to in line 1B is residential customer-sited
10 MR. 10ZKOWSKI: Okay. 10 I take it, right?
11 Q. Let me ask that question, was that 11 A, No, I--actually I was looking a little
12 prefiled testimony that you had for the House? Or 12 broader because I'm looking at the small customer
13 was it a PowerPgint without a plece of prefiled 13 market, so it actually would entail residential and
14 testimony? 14 small commercial,
15 A, [ believe thare was 2 document that said 15 Q. Okay, 50 when you say "customer-sited,”
16 'Testimony of." 16 you're talking about residential and small
17 Q. Was that separate from the PowerPoint? 17 commercial.
18 A. [ don't recall whether the PowerPoint was 18 A, Yes. And I belleve there might be a
19  included within that testimony or whether it just 19  target area, maybe less than a hundred kilowatts or
20 made reference. 1'm not sure, [ don't recall. 20  something. 1 think I might have been specific as to
2 0. That's fine. 21 the size of the application. Those are the markets
22 MR. FARUKI: Mike, I'll ask for both of 22 that I think are in danger of being not
23 those if indeed they're separate, 1 understand they 23 participating.
24 might not be. 24 Q. If a customer, if a residentfal customer
25 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Okay. If they exist 25 has a small facility, it would be at most how much, a
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Page 44 Page 47
1 kilowatt? 1 could then parcel it out.
2 A. No. No, I would say residential 3 So it would just be I put out my system 3
3 application could be anywhere from 3 to 4.5 kW, 4.5 3 megawatt hours a year and the company remunerates me
4 being -- 4 for these 3 megawatt hours and the company has
5 Q. What is the basis for that statement? 5 ownership of those 3 megawatt hours of RECs.
G A. Based on the information we've had 6 Q. And it's your belief then that a single
7 discussions with the Ohio Department of Development 7 customer, residential customer could get 3 megawatt
8 and they've had programs in the past that have 8  hoursin a year?
9 offered incentives to residential customers, 9 A, They could, yes, given the siting in Ohip
10 Q. De you know -- 10 and depending on the size of their installation and
11 A, Site visits, I've actually been on site 11 whether it obviously, if it's wind turbine
12 visits, Energy Ohio monthly meetings, and we visited 12 wversus. ..
13 a number of alternative energy facilities, 13 Q. Such a program would have an
14 residential and commercial. 14  administrative cost, wouldn't it?
15 Q. Sorry, you paused and I didn't mean to 15 A, Yes, it would,
16 cut you off. Sometimes you pause and I think you're 16 (. And for the program to be worthwhile It
17  done and I start to ask another question. 17 would have te be woith the administrative cost of
18 Do you know how many DP&L customers have 18 running a customer-sited program, wouldn't it?
19 customer-sited renewable energy? 19 A. 1 believe that if the administration of
20 A, Idon't know the exact number. [ know 20 the program, the program design details would have to
21 I've been part of the solar tour. There's a solar 21 be such so that to try to minimize some of the
22 tour in every area in Dhio, And Ohio is one of 22 administrative burden, yes.
23 the -- I've only been to the tours In Central Ohio. 23 Q. What's the fower limit of this? In other
24 I recall during the 2005 Energy Policy 24 words let’s me ask it this way, are you suggesting
25 Act there was one of the areas that was net metering 25 that OCC would recommend that DP&L would have what
Page 45 Page 48 |-
1 and interim connection was on the items and I recall 1 you call a customer-sited renewable energy program
2 that presentations were made by all four vendors' 2 and undertake the administrative costs for it even if
3 utilities on sofar applications in their territory, 3 the program did not produce a single $25 valued REC?
4 And 1 would say based on their 4 A, You're talking about the value of a REC
5 application there was a whole city of renewable 5 now.
6 energy in most of the utilities, and T think Daytan 6 Q. Yes, sl
7 was also one. 7 A, And my earlier discussion the numbers 1
8 Q. You said a minute ago you support 8  gave you were for voluntary market type REC, which is
9 renewable —- you support net metering. You're aware 9 the -- I'm sory, voluntary market, I think that's
10 that DP&L has a net metering tariff? 10 what I wantad to say.
11 A, Yes, T am. 1 0On a mandatory market the prices are much
12 Q. And are you aware that DPB.L provides net 12 higher. So it may not be $25, it may be $250 or it
13 metering service to customers through small renewable i3 may be some portion of whatever the -+ 1 think when
14  generation projects? L4 221 was developed, the leglstation, they have an
15 A, Yes, I'm aware of that, 15 alternate compliance payment that starts at $450 and
16 Q. Do you know what the market value is of a 16 ramps down $50 every two years.
17 nen-sofar REC in Chio? 17 I think that was with the knowledge that
18 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Are you saying at the 18 the solar carve out REC in & mandatory market is
19 moment? 19 usually going to affect a higher price.
20 Q. Yes. 20 MR. FARUKI: Read my question back.
21 A. Off the top of my head I don't recall, 1 21 (Record read.}
22 know that there would be a difference when you talk 22 A, See, I would disagree with the
23 about RECs between a REC that's determined in the 23 $25 premise. In my responss to your question [
24 vpluntary market, which is about one/third of total 24 disagree with $25,
25 RECs traded, and a REC traded in the mandatory 25 Q. TI'll ask you to accept it and answer my
Page 46 Page 49 |
1 market, 1 question, I'd ask you to assume $25 for a REC.
2 Q. Do you know the dobar value of elther? 2 You would agree with me that at that
3 A, I'mtrying to sez if, . . 3  level the program would not be economical, right?
4 [ would — 4 A. I 'would have to look at the - it may be
5 Q. Idon't want you to quess, 5 less economical, I weuld have to look at the
6 A, You know what, I'm trying to recall is 6  administrative costs because there are ways that you
7 thelast -- when T was really involved in this was 7 could deslgn a program to minimize the administrative
8  whan we developed the three green pricing programs. B costs to the extent that the administrative cost was
9 So we were very aware of what the bids 9 manageable.
13 were for the RFPs that AEP put out for the green 10 [ think 1 couldn’t make a determination
11 pricing program and the RFPs that were put out in the 11 based on that hypothetical without having more
12 First Energy and with the Duke program which we 12 information.
13 helped develop. 13 Q. Take alook at page 5. Online 5 you
14 But in the voluntary market with those 14 have an answer that states that "DP&L is proposing te
15  pragrams is a very small -- 1 would say it's less 15  spend $118.9 million over seven years upoi strictly
16 than 10,000 megawatt. 16 DSM programs.”
17 Q. 5o if using that figure, if it was $10 a 17 Do you see that?
18 REC or even $25 for a REC, are you suggesting that - 18 A, Yes, 1do.
19  are you suggesting that a bunch of customers with 19 . Are you expressing any opinion about the
20 small facilities be aggregated to get a 10 or §25 REC 20 adequacy of that dollar amount?
2L credit? 21 A. Mo, I'm not.
22 A. It could be aggregation is one point but 22 Q. If you go down to fine 15, you have &
23 I believe a system the size that I'm talking about, 23 statement "1 belleve that OP&E should ba allowed full
24 if you could get -- you wauld get perhaps 3 megawatt 24 recovery far prudently incurred DSM costs. . "
25  hours a year an a residential unit. I think you 25 A. That's carrect.
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Page 50 Page 53
1 Q. That's one of your opinians in this case? 1 running similar bype programs have by and large been
2 A. Yes, itls. 2 able to administer the programs, market the programs,
3 Q. The end of that answer on line 17 to 20 3 and deliver the programs, plus deliver the monftoring
4 refers to Witness Sawmiller, and marketing and 4 and evaluation of the programs within the guidelines
5  administration costs, 5 that I'm recommending.
6 A, That's correct, 6 Q. One of the comparisons you're making with
7 Q. Isit he or you who IS sponsoring 7 regard to marketing and administration costs is with
8 testimony about marketing and administration costs in 8  Columbia Gas; is that right?
9 this case? 9 A, One Is with Columbia Gas, and the other
10 In ather wards, do I need to cover that 10 is with [ would say Duke, which is the two 1 have the
11 subject with you or is that properly for him? 11 most familiarity with,
12 MR, [D2ZKOWSKI: IF T could just interject 12 Q. Do you know whether utilities have
13 & question, Charlie. I think Wilson's testimony is 13  different epproaches to classifying the cost
14 filed and speaks for itself as to what his opinions 14 components of marketing and administration costs?
15 are, 15 A. There may be some differences but for the
16 Now, at same point in this hearing your 16 most part the way I'm using It and the way I'm trying
17 guestions have been I think trying to determine if 17  to get a levelized picture all in I would classify it
18 he's going to have any other opinions, and I mean, If 18  as administration, marketing, education, and
16 he's asked a hypothetical question in the hearing on 19  monitoring evaluation, those components, Just to
20 cross or redirect, we can't anticipate what those 20 make it an apples-to-apples comparisan.
21 questions are at this time. 21 Q. Tell me those components again.
22 MR. FARUKI: Well, I understand, but when 2 A. The administrative cost, marketing of the
23 somebody sort of gratuitously throws into their 23 programs, education/marketing, sometimes they go
24 testimony a summary of sumebady else's testimany, T 24  togetier, and monitaring and verification of the
25 don't know whether I'm then dealing with one witness 25 programs. That's what I'm including in my
Page 51 Page 54
1 ortwo. 1 definition.
2 I'm perfectly content to only examing 2 Q. And do you know whether utilities report
3 Mr. Sawmiller about this subject, but as you can see 3 their marketing and administration costs, do all of
4 onlines 16 through 20, he repeats Sawmiller's 4 them include those elerments within marketing and
5 opinians. $o do I need to cress him toa? 5 adminlstration costs?
6 MR. IDZKOWSKIL: If he repeats them, I & A. Yes, those are -- we set up the programs
7 would think you would, 7 when wa look at that budget itemn in the collaborative
8 BY MR. FARUKI: 8  process.
9 Q. Okay, in view of that, tell me what you 9 Q. That's not my question.
10 did to analyze the subject of marketing and 10 A. Go ahead,
11  administration costs for testimony in this case. 11 0. I'm asking you when you are taking
12 A, Oh, I reviewed the -- whan I was going 12 figures reported by other utilities, is it within
13 through the programs I did notice that what T 13 vour knowledge as to what components of cost are
14 believed was higher than expected administrative 14 included in marketing and administration costs for
15  costs for this section of the cauntry, 1§ any spedfic utility?
16 Q. And did'you -- what do you mean "this 16 A. [ believe that the way we design the
17 section of the country"? 17 programs through a collaborative process, we define
18 A. Well, many of the -- some of the 18  what those categories were upfront, and upon review
13 information that bandies about in the utility are 19  or when the programs are audited, those ara the
20 from the utilities that have been most active in 20 categories we would look at in that cost category,
21 energy efficiency in ana of the regions of the 21 Q. So In other words, you're not aware that
22 country. 22 the -- that Columbia Gas” methodology for breaking
23 By and large most the regions of the 23 down program costs s different from the methodology
24 country that have undertaken energy efficiency is the 24 used for program costs by electric ukllities?
25 regions of the country that have high electricity 25 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Can you read that
Page 52 Page 55
1 cost, high cost of living, and higher costs. 1 question back?
2 So everything else being equal, 1 would 2 {Record read.)
3 think there would be an upward bias on those types 3 THE WITNESS: Can you just read the first
4 of -- that's all 'm saying. 4 part of that question,
5 Q. When you talk about your 25 percent in 5 (Recard read.)
6 line 19, sir, let me ask this, should state mandated 6 A, Well, 1 am aware of the differences
7 reporting costs be in addition to that 25 percent? 7  between the Columbia categorization in that respect
8 A, That's part of administrative program is 8 Lo Duke. Duke explicitly includes monitoring and
9 meeting whatever reparting requirements, T would say 9 evaluation as part of the 25 percent.
10 ves. 10 The Calurnbia Gas counts that as a
if Q. And how about the costs of a 11 separate item. Butwhen you look at Columbia Gas'
i2 collaborative, do you conslder that to be an addition 12 costs for monitoring evaluation, [ believe it's
L3 to the 25 percent also? 13 3 percent of budget, then it stifl falls befow the
t4 A Iwould say yes. It's part of 14 25 percent recammendation.
15 administrating the program, 15 Q. So you're saying Columbia Gas does not
16 Q. Have you tried to analyze the components 16 include in the program cost evaluation and Duke does?
17 of the administrative costs for DP&L's programs? 17 A, Corract. But the main point is when you
18 A.  As I mentioned earlier, I've looked at 18 add the evaluation to Columbia's total, it's still
19 the programs. 1 agreed with Sawmiller’s independent 19 below the 25 percent.
20 study that it was -- they seemed -- appeared 20 Q. You agree with me that programs should be
21 excessive based on my experience with the Duke 21 evaluated based on a cost/benefit analysis?
22 collaboratlve which were very - 1 was very much 22 A. That's one of the evaluations, yes.
23 involved with in terms of in the Columbia 23 Q. You alsc agree with me that some programs
24 collaborative, which T was also very involved in. 24 are mare lzbor intenslve, such as appliance recycling
25 And both thase collaboratives that are 25  or weatherization, than other programs, right?
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Page 56 Page 59 .

1 A, Generally speaking, different programs 1 With regard te energy efficiency and DSM B

2 will have different intensities. 1 don't agree with 2 programs, Is It accurate that a utility can provide

3 your characterization of the recycling program. 3 incentives but in order for the targets to be met
4 From the company's perspertive there are 4 some changes in customer behavior are going to be
5  a number of recycling third parties that make that a 5  required?

6  business and administratively with the company all 6 A, 1 would say in the early years where

7 you have to do is enter into a contract with them and 7 you're ramping up In the requirements I would say

8 they doall the. . . 8  very manageable, 1 would think that an incentive,

g Q. Are there some programs that are more 9 i.e,, customer behavlor reacting to an incentive, a
10  labor intensive than others? 10 good deal, 1 think you could probably get away with
11 A. T would think the more economics the 11 that in the early years.

12 program is perhaps they were more labar intensive, 12 1 think down the road when benchmarks
13 Q. Ifit takes more adminlistration cost to 13 become more -- larger and more rigorous, I think you
14 make energy efficiency happen, do you agree that the 14 always want to contemplate working with customer
15 program should nevertheless be pursued? 15 behavier in educating them and -- yes.

16 A, Yeah, if it takes -- I'm not -- alk I'm 16 Q. Saylng that a fittle bit differently, the
17 saying is if thera's a program -- we'll get right to 17 meeting the targets that are in the Bill or in the
18  the issue. 18 legislation requires actions both by the utility and
19 If there's a program that exceeds cur 19 by the customers, right?

20 recommendations of 25 percent and the program has 20 A. [ would say the utility's the prime mover
21 merit, we would -- that's something that I think the 21 and the customer, we would hope we would get customer
22 collaborative would consider on its merits and make a 22 reaction that would help the utility meet their
23 determination. 23 requirements, yes.
24 This is -- it's 3 cap subject to 24 Q. Wel, it's more than hope on behalf of
25 reasonable collaborative review, And it's a cap that 25 the customers. In order for the targats to be met,
Page 57 Page 60

1 we've used successfully, In fact, it was part of the 1 the utility has to take some actions, I agree with

2 Columbia program model. 2 youthere,

3 MR. FARUKI: Read me the first part of 3 A, Yes,

4 his answer. 4 Q. But customers also need to take some

5 {Record read.} 5 actons, right?

6 Q. Sojust for clarity of my records, is the b A, Customers will take action based on their

7 answer to that question yes with the explanation you 7 tesponse to the utility offering, 1 think the

8 gave? 8 customers -- right now customers are taking action

9 A, Your original question when you -- you % now as we speak.

10 didn't qualify, you just said "or more." In my 10 The question is is that because of the
11 answer I qualified what I felt was excessive. So in 11 rnarket barriers we talked about earlier, those
12 that regards, my answer -- T would stick with my 12 ackions are not going to meet - may not necessarity
13 answer, 13 meet the requirements and that's why based on our
14 Q. Well, you're telling me that you think 14  discussion earlier the mandates were inciuded in the
15  that programs that have an administrative cost that 15 legistation and the utility -- was the abifity that
16 are more than your proposed 25 percent cap would 16  the legisfators thought place the requirement on 5o
17 nevertheless be pursued if the administrative cost 17 that they can move that particular market.

18  seems reasonable. 18 Q. 1think you're making my guestion too
19 Is that what you're saying? 19 hard.

20 A. I'm saying based upon review, a 20 All I'm meaning to ask is isn't it true
21 collaborative review, there's merit or there's some 21 that for the targets to be met, the utility has to
22 consideration for the program, then a determination 22 take actions and the customer has to take actions
23 would be made. 23 too?

24 And in Fact, I would say that my concern 24 A Yes.

25 was a number of the programs, and this s a concein 25 Q. And part of the actions that the utility

Page 58 Page 61

1 that I raised also with American Electric Power, that 1 has to take are customer education and outreach?

2 ifit's ane program in isolation or -- then we'll 2 A. T would say the utility has to conduct

3 ook atit. Butif apregram has very high admin 3 customer education and outreach but T would qualify

4 costs, it then raises a flag, 4 it as specific to a particular program or particular

5 Q. T understand that, but I'm still trying 5 market segment they're trying address as apposed to

6 to figure out if I can get a yes to this question, 6  just ubiguitous general energy efficiency.

7 Letme ask it In a negative way. 7 Q. That'sfine. So what you're saying is

3 1s it your testimony that no program 8  the utility has to have education and cutreach

9 should be considered if its admin/strative costs were g efforts that are geared toward the specific programs
10 over 25 percent? 10 that it's offering.
1L A, And my answer, Lo be consistent with my i A, Correct,

12 earlier answer, which I still adhere to, is that i 12 Q. Let me go to the next section of your
13 in & collaborative process we review a program that 13 testimony, which is page &, sir. With reaard to
14 has administrative cost that are higher than 14 recovery of lost revenues. Do you have that In front
I5 25 percent, and as a group we, based on the merits of 15  of you?

16 the program, we decide that that's an acceptable 16 A, Yes, Ido.

L7  administrative cost, then we would - there would be 17 Q. Would you agree with me thatifa
L8 grounds to approve it, 18  residential customer using #50-kilowatt hours per
19 Q. Okay, thank you. 19 month implements energy efficiency measures and a5 a
20 Qff the record. 20 result of those that custormer saves say a hundrad
21 {Off the record.) 21 kifowatt hours per month, that DRP&L would lose
22 Q. Back on the record. 22 revenue associated with the hundred kitowatt hour
23 Couple of questions, sir, that don't 23 savings?

24 relate to a particular page of your testimony and 24 A, Are you saying overall or just in that
25 then we'll go back to the testimony. 25  particular instance?

11 (Pages 56 to 61)
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Page 62 Page 65 |
1 Q. For that custamer. 1 utilities to conduct programs that would reduce
2 A, The answer dgiffers. For that 2 demand for electric service?
3 particular -~ if that customer reducad their usage by 3 A, Like I said earlier, 1 believe that the
4 a hundred kilowatt hours? 4 Senate Bill has both carrofs and sticks, So you're
5 Q. Yes, sir. 5 talking about in your question you're specifying the
6 A, That's a hundred kilowatt hours from that 6 carrok part of the legislation.
7 customer that the utility would not see. However, 7 And my respanse too Is that when you're
8 anaother customer may increase their use by a hundred. 8 offering incentives, you have to take into account
9 Soin that -- it's not clear what the net result 9 the customer perspective and In my case the
10 would be. 10 residential customer perspective, so incentive given
1 Q. 1understand, but when programs succeed 11  to utilities are not at the cost or on the backs of
12 in causing energy savings, the result or outcame of 12  residential custemers,
13 each of those instances Is that the utility would 13 Q. Take a look at lines 15 through 18, the
14 lose revenue assaciated with whatever the amount of 14 sentence begins "To the extant that."
15  energy is saved; is that right? 15 A, And this is on page?
16 A, Again, generally speaking, if you have 16 Q. Issorry, still on page 6, yos, sir.
17 that successful efficiency program, you would expect 17 Line 15.
18 that kilowatt hours are reduced in usage. 18 A. Yes,
i9 Q. Yes, sir, okay. 19 Q. You understand that DP&L has said it will
20 Take & look at lina 1 think it begins 20 abide by the PUCO rules?
21 actually around line 7. 21 A, It has to, ves.
22 A. Yes, 22 Q. Yes, well, you say In your sentence "To
23 Q. Tell you what, go down to line 12 where 23 the extent that the PUCO final rules maintain the
24 you say "DP&L Is free Lo sell in the whaolesale 24 existing language cited above, the DP&L lost revenue
25 market,” do you see that passage? 25 recovery mechanism would be in violation of the Ghio
Page 63 Page 66
1 A, Yes. 1 Administrative Code.”
2 Q. You recognize that there's a difference 2 But you also understand, having read the
3 between the rate that a utility can sell generation 3 filing, that DP&L. daes not intend to adopt a policy
4 into the whelesale market and the rate that applies 4 that's in violation of the code, right?
5 to retail generation? 5 A. Yeah, I'would think it would be
[ A Yes. 6 foohardy to do so.
7 Q. Do you agree that in most hours the 7 Q. Your position here boils down to the
8  retail prices are higher than wholesale prices? 8  point that DP&IL. should and must ablde by the Ohio
9 A, 1n most hours, so off-peak hours, then ¢ Administrative Code containing the PUCO rules; is
10 during normal days, probably, yes. 10 that right?
il Q. Replacement of retail revenues with 11 A, On that -- I make & number of arguments
12 wholesale revenues would act as a disincentive for 12 concerning this particular area, You're just
13 wiility to offer energy efficdency programs. 13 spedific to that one sentence?
14 Wouldn't you agree? 14 Q. Yes, Because you'rg suggesting -- yes,
15 A. Replacing -- well, the assumption is that 15 spedific to that one sentence.
1&  the wholesale revenues -~ the marketl period appears 15 A. Ifthe PUCO rules fall out in a way that
17 that the wholesale revenues are lower than the retail 17 I'm saying that I think the draft fell aut, then the
18  revenues during most haurs, as you said. 18 utflity would have to abide by the final rules.
19 Q. Not sure if you're done with your answer, 19 Q. Okay, page 7, on lings 3 and 4 there is
20 A. No, based on that hypaothetical, it could 20 the phrase "variable operation and malntenance
21 be a disincentive for the utity. 21  expenses." .
22 Q. Do you believe that the legislation was 22 A, That's correct. -
23 intended to pravide incentives for utilities to offer 23 Q. Can yau tell me what you Include In -
24 energy efficiency programs? 24 those? :
25 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Can you clarify what you 25 A, Yes, 1would say — and in fact, {
Page 64 Page 67
I mean by an "incentive" there? Economic incentive or 1 recall one of your witnesses, perhaps Meriinan when
2 just the policy or how do you mean that, Charlie? 2 she was talking about clients, 1 believe that there
3 Q. Either ¢cne, I mean, don't you agree that 3 are a number of costs that vary by unit in a coal
4 the legislation was Intended to offer incentives o 4 plant. So, for example, in your generation is
5  utilities to make sure that they would offer energy 5 99 percent coal, according to your testimony.
&  efficiency programs? 6 So therefore, and you also make a point
7 A. 1think the legislation includes both 7 inyour testimony of Merrinan that the company is
B  carrots and sticks, So it says if you don't meet it, 8 switching from lower sulfer fuel to higher sulfer
9 this consequences. But there are parts of the 9 fuel and the challenges that that brings in and the
10 Ileqislation that offer utilities [ would say icosely 10 increased variable costs that that brings in.
11 incentives for undertaking the pragrams, 11 Because it's very clear in her testimony
12 Q. Inimplementing Senate Bill 221, do you 12 where she states that some of these costs are going
13 think # would be more effective ta offer incentives 13 up per unit per kilowatt hour for generation use.
14 for utilities to implement pregrams that would lower 14 So 1 would say she Identlflas a number of
15 the demand for their products or services? 15 them, I don't think it would be exhaustive but a lot
16 A, Can you rephrase that? 1 missed 16 of them are chemicals that are required in running a
17 something there, 17 plant.
18 MR. FARUKI: Why don't you read it back. 18 So it could be - and you know, usual
19 (Record read.) 19 testimony I've read with ather companies in my
0 A. ['m having trouble, 20 experience is there's lime, there's stabilizer,
21 Q. Do you understand my guestion? 2t there's ammonia equipment, Scme of these chemicals
22 A. Yeah, I'm having trouble, Would you 22 are for scrubbers or for ether type of environmental
23 rephrase it or something? 23 equipment., There could be sodium sulfite.
29 Q. Sure, Do you think that the best way to 24 So there's a number of chemlicals that
25 implement Senate Bill 221 is to offer incentives to 25 would increase the more you produce, and secondly,
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there's disposal issues, right? The mare you
produce, the more fly ash you have, the more gypsum
you may have.

You consume more water and there's more
transpartation to take to disposal, to the site, and
these transportation costs are increasing, according
to Merrinan.

So I'm saying it's not just fuel that's
being deferred by the energy efficiency program, it's
also fuel plus a variable.

Q. T understand that's what you're saying.

[ just want your definition of variable operation and
maintanance expenses,

A, Well, my definition I gave examples of
what it might be, My definition of variable would be
it varies -- a cost that varies with the production
of energy. As opposed o a fixed cost.

Q. On lines 9 through 17, roughly, you talk
about the lost revenue calculation of two other Ohio
utilities. You see that?

A, That's correct.

Q. You are aware of PUCO orders that
approved terms and conditions for one utility that
are different than another, right?

A, Are you asking me If the Commission can

Page 68
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it?

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Objection. Again, this
calls for legal concluston.

Go ahead if you can answer the question.

A, Idon't think it addresses it any more
than that they may consider a utility Jost revenue
recovery proposal.

Q. If a customer implements an energy
efficiency measure that results in saving, use our
example before, hundred kilowatt hours, and that
gnargy efficiency measure whatever it is lasts a
number of years, then the utility is losing the
revenue associated with that over however many years
that measure lasts; is that right?

A, Again, we had a part of this discussion
earlier in terms af if you're isolating one customer
and one measure versus what's going on with all
custemners in a total utility service territory,

So my impression is that in a way lost
revenue has been treatad in other jurisdictions is
that they look at the whole utility service territory
to see what's actually happening to utility earnings.

Q. Mr. Gonzalez, you're not answeting my
quastion. My guestion is if an energy efficiency
measure saved a certain amount of energy and that

Page 71
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rule differently on one utility versus another one?

Q. VYes, sir,

A, Well, If the set of facts are different,

I would think the PUCO could make a varied decision
or come out with an order that would fit the
circumstances.

Q. Taking a leok at fines 11 and 12,

A, Yes.

Q. Are you suggesting there that because AEP
did not seek recovery of lost revenues then DPRL
should not?

A, Tthink here the reason I use references
far the ather utilities is lllustrative that my whole
cantention is that as stated in line 10 is that [
believe the lost revenus recovery mechanism in the
fiting is excessive in terms of that.

So I'm wsing the other Chio utilities to
show how they've had - - they've shown more restraint
and have been -- and are more sensitive ta the cost
implications of lost revenue requirement mechanisms,
not just on the utility but also on the customers.

Q. You do recagnize that the statute
4928.143(B}2)(h) allows for utilities recovery of
costs including lost revenue,

MR. IDZKOWSKT: Objection. That calls

Page 69
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lasted a certain number of years, doesn't the utility
for that customer lose the revenue for the period of
years in effect?

A. It depends. 1t's not titat easy, Let's
take the same hypothetical, your customer, this one
custorner, hundred Kilowatt hours a year. Next year,
2009 he installs that as part of the utility program.

Litility comes back in two years and files
a rate case. Load forecasting incorporates that,
then the utility hasn't lost revenue for the life of
that measure

Q. You're looking for a way o say no to
this question. I'm focused on --

A. No, that's a very real --

Q. Let me finish my question.

A, That's a very real ¢endition to your
hypothetical,

Q. TI'm talking about a single customer who
implements a single measure that saves & certain
number of kilowatt hours over a period of time, isn't
the utility losing the revenue associated with that
measure for that period of time?

MR. IDZKOWSKI: I'm going to object, I
think he's answered your question and your quastion
is somewhat vague as to the period of time we're
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for a lega!l conclusion,

Q. Go ahead.

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Go shead, if you
understand thaf --

A Yes.

MR, IDZKOWSKI: -- code and section,

A TI'm aware the language is permissive In
both circumstances and the beginning of that and
always -- yes. 5o [ belleve [t's something that the
Commission may cansider and when a utility proposes
its programs.

Q. And the statute was not written to say,
for example, Including X percent of lost revenue, was
it?

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Objection. Again, legal
conclusion,
Go ahead if you know.

A, [t doesn't say every penny either.

Q. The answer to my question?

A. Is the legistation just says that
Commission may, 5o the Commission will make that
determination based on the circumstances of any
utility filing; no more, ne less,

Q. And the statute does not put a numerical
or percentage limit on recovery of lost revenue, does

Page 70
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talking about because he just gave an example of
where the period of time could include a new rate
case and another recalculation of revenues.

MR, FARUKI: Let's say ten months.

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Okay, to that extent can
you answer the question in & ten-month period?

A, Again, 1 would caveat It because, for
example, I coukl make a case where that customer is
actually adding kifowatt hours,

If it's a case of fuel switching where
this was a gas customer for a veteran and because of
your incentives this customer says they have a
stratght fixed variable rate design, maybe [ want a
mare efficient and they're going to rebuild the gas
system, I sae some costs caming up, maybe I'll take
advantage of this rebate, and in that particular case
ane fuel switch on an appliance is equivalent to six
ar seven energy efficiency appliances installed in
customer homes,

So it would depend. It's a very nuance
question.

Q. Take a look at what you say in lines 12
to 14. Are you suggesting there that you would
assume the energy efficiency savings go away after
three years?

Page 73
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Page 74 Page 77
1 A, In 12 my question -- 12 to 14 years the 1 You agree that over the seven-year period
2 way that -- and this is my experience both In New 2 that DP&L Is talking about for Its customer
3 England and in different parts of the country, and if 3 conservation and energy managemant program the energy
4 you look at the literature is that when people talk 4 efficiancy targets grow, or 1 think ta use your term
5  zbout lost revenue recovery or lost margin recovery, 5 earlier, ramp up from .3 percent in 2008 to
6 it's for a period of time. 6 5.2 percent in 20157
7 [t's not for the life of the program and 7 A, Yes,
8 it's not because things change over time, And it's 8 Q. And subject to check, would you agree
9 tied to the rest of the utility operating company. 9 that that represents an increase of about
10 T give examples where, for example, the 10 1800 percent?
11 utility is gver-earning, it's a rate of return, then 11 A. Subject to check.
12 I think that's something the Commission would take 12 Q. Would you agree that that increase of
13  into account in terms of whether the company is being 13 approximately 1600 percent is quite large?
14  financially harmed. 14 A. 1 wauld say in this context probably --
15 Q. You've wandered far from my question, 15 1600 percent In this context is probably, you could
16 If a customer installs a new HVAC system 16 consider it large.
17 thatis more efficient, you would nat expect the i7 Q. When you say on page 7, line 17, that the
18  energy efficiency benefits of that te vanish after 18  balances of lost revenue can grow quite large, see
19 three years, would you? 19 that?
20 A. No. Iwould hope not. Unless it's - 20 A, Yes,
21 yeah, yeah, go ahead. 21 Q. Isitlagical that the lost revenue
22 Q. And if the customer has a8 new HVAC system 22 recovery that results from meeting mandated targets
23 and that is a more energy efficient system, the 23 would grow in proportion to the targets?
24 utility would lose the revenues associated with the 24 A.  Can you read that back?
25 difference batween the energy efficiency of the HYAC 25 {Record read.)
Page 75 Page 78
1 system and what the customer had before; is that 1 A, There is some logic to that.
2 right? 2 3. If you look on page 8, starting about
3 A. For a particular -- we're still talking 3 line g, tell me when you've had a chance to read that
4 about the ten months? 4 to yourself.
5 Q. If you like. 5 MR. IDZKOWSKI: 9 to where?
6 A, Yeah, ] mean, over a shorter period I 5} MR. FARUKE: 9 1to 12,
7 think your -- it would be easier to answer that 7 MR. IDZKOWSKI: You mean whera it starts
B question than over the long period of time. 8 '"Giventha .."?
9 Q. Well, the shorter period what's your 9 MR. FARUKI: Yes, "Given the above
18 answer? 10 reasons.. "
11 A. 1 would think that gver a short period, 11 A, Yes,
12 the ten-month period, there's a possibllity that, 12 ). You have a quote there In that sentence
13 vyes, it could lose revenue from that particular 13 where you talk about "The impacts of a loss of
14 customer. 14 revenue due to an energy efficiency program be offset
15 Q. Page 7 you reference on line 17 a study 15 by revenue growth from custamzar growth or by a
16 by ACEEE. Do you have a copy of that? 16 reduction in costs.”
17 A. Yes, Ido. 17 Have you taken a lock at or done any
i8 MR. FARUKL: V'd make a request for that, 18 analysis of revenue growth in the DP&L system? In
18 Q. What is the ACEEE study? 19 other words, from its customer base?
20 A It's -- let's see whete it's cited, 20 A, Tdon't recall recently. T've reviewed
21 1t's on the next page. [t's called 21 in the past DP&L forecast filing which would have an
22 "Aligning utility interest with energy efficlency 22 estimate of growth In the customers and growth in the
23 objectives: A review of recent efforts at decoupling 23 demand for the electricity and energy increase.
24  and performance incentives," 24 Q. Focusing on revenue growth from customer
25 Q. What is ACEFE? 25 growth, do you know what is expected in DP&L'S
Page 76 Page 79 [
1 A It's the American Council on Energy 1 service arear '
2 Efficiency Economy or ~- Energy Efficiency Economy, 2 A, Are you asking me per custorner? What the
3 Q. What is that group, do you know? 3 utility -
4 A, 1U's energy efficiency advocacy and 4 Q. If you know it some other way, that's
5 research organization I believe, 5 fine, [ wasn't specifying a unit of measurement, I'm
[ Q. Does it focus on one customer class or B really trying to find out -
7 several customer classes, do you know? 7 A, My expectations arg =-
8 A. Mo, it -- I'm aware they do studies for 2] MR. IDZKOWSKI: Are you done with your
9 all customer classes. 9 question?
10 Q. Is it a consumer groug of spme sort? 10 MR. FARUKT; o, but that's okay.
11 A, No. 11 MR. IDZKOWSKI: 1 don't mean to
12 Q. Industry group, what is it? 12 interrupt, I just thought I'd facifitate,
13 A, T'would say it's an advocacy group for 13 MR. FARUKI: Thank you.
14 energy efficiency. 14 Q. I'm just trying to figure out if you have
15 Q. Do you know its memnbership? 15 made any analysis of whether there is to be revenue
16 A. 1 know people in ACEEE. T've hoen to 16  growth from customer growth in DP&L's service
17 conferences, 17 teriitory.
18 Q. I didn't mean if you knew individuals but i8 A, I'm trylng to recall. 1 would believe
19 do you know the compositian of its membership 1% that usage per customer is probably at least -~
20 generally? 20 again, I'm talking about a residential customer, so I
pal A, I would say most of the peaple I've come 21 wauld have to qualify it, but T would think with all
22 in contact with are analytical researchers. Or 22 the new electrical devices I weuld say that uses per
23 policy driven. 23 customer would prohably be increasing slightly.
24 Q. Page B believe, sir. Actually it 24 Q. You say "would probably be." Are you
25 starts on toward the end of 7. 25 guessing? Because my question is have you done any
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Page 80 Page 83
1 analysis of that, 1 implementing?
2 A. T'm saying 1 don't recall - 1 don't 2 Again, It could be a crash program, it
3 recollect the numbers [ looked at in specific, I'm 3 could be -- I've seen a program that's more
4 trying to recall. 4 deliberate, I've seen programs that have accomplished
5 The company does have a positive growth 5 thatin a court, at least getting something out
6 inenergy requirements, so I don't know If it's -- & thers
7 I'm trying to think if it's in the 1 percent range. 7 And obviously the more -- the programs
8 Q. You don't remember? 8 that are simpler to run and operate which you could
] A. [ den't remember, But I would baligve it 9 hand off, I think those might be the first ones that
10 would be in that type of range. 10 come off the shoot,
11 Q. Do you remember that SB-221 contains a 11 The mere complicated programs that need
12 provision that expressly permits the recovery of 12 more judicious consideration or need more
13 revenue that otherwise may be foregone in connection 13 information, so on, you might pull those out, develop
14 with implementation of energy efficiency programs? i4  those later,
18 A. Are you referring te 4928.66(D)? i5 But in the collaboratives that I've baen
16 Q. Do you know if the Bill allows recovery I6 partof, and I haven' been -- I wasn't part of the
17 of revenue that otherwise may be foregone? t7  early history of DP&L, so I have no experience with
18 A. And I'm asking you whether you're L8  that particular collaborative, but the collaboratives
19 referring to that provision of the Bili? 19  that I've been involved in have been very efficient,
20 Q. That's one of them. 20 very streamline, have been very focused, and move
21 A, Again, I would say that it has -- there's 21 forward and provide successful programs
22 language in the Bill that's permissive, says the 22 Q. Sopage 9, lines 12 and 13, did you take
23 Commission may, again, allow utilities to implement a 23 & shot at DP&L when you say it "needed the prodding
24 decoupling mechanism. 24 of Revised Code to undertake energy efficiency” --
25 My impression that the language in 56{D} 25 MR, IDZKOWSKL: I'm going to object that
Page 81 Page 84
1 talks about a decoupling mechanism, 1 that's a bit argumentative.
2 Q. Do you believe that degeneration revenues 2 MR, FARUKI: Wait till you hear the rest
3 are foregone by a utility that implements 3 of the question.
4 conservation measures? 4 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Okay, go ahead.
5 A, Ifyou're in a vertically integrated 5 Q. What Is the basis for that statement that
6 company in a state that's requfated, fully regulated, 6 DP&L needed prodding before we look at the real facts
7 1 would say for the most part the cempany -- even in 7 here?
8§ that particular case a company would -- could lose 8 MR. [DZKOWSKI: Again, I'm going to
9 generation revenues. 9 object, It's unnecessarily argumentative,
10 But to the extent that you have markets 10 Go ahead and answer the question to the
11 operating in almost every part of the country where 11  extant you understand that,
12 trade's going to be made, I think even in a regulated 12 A, When I make that statement, I'm making it
13 state off system sales and wholesale transactions can 13 based on an actual fact that pricr to the
14  take place. So that’s a pretty complicated issue, 14 implementaticn of that Bill, DP&L had no energy
15 Q. Take alook at page 9. As1 understand 15  efficiency programs for its customers aside from
16 your testimony on shared savings, you do not have or 16 low-income custamers,
17 you do not make a shared savings proposal; is that 17 So, and DP&L is not alone in Ohio. 1
18 right? 18 mean, AEP is the same situation. So, and I'm aware
19 A, I think [ do. 19 that our office has probably had discussions with
20 Q. What is your shared savings proposal? 20 DPAL in the past concerning -- as we had with every
21 A My shared savings proposal is that the 21 other company -- concerning Implementation of energy
22 company should not have a shared savings proposal, 22 efficiency programs, That was an important elernent
23 (. Fine. Onpage 9, line 11, you teferto a 23 in the Consumers' Counsel's vislon,
24 multi-year collabaratively developed DSM portfolio of 24 So in that context is where I'm saying
25  programs, 25  that it’s not clear whether -- if that legislation
Page 82 Page 85 |-
1 A, That's correct, 1 had not passed whether OP&L would have been making :
2 Q. What do you mean "multi-year 2 this filing,
3 collahoratively developed"? You mean It takes -- 3 Q. You agree with me that In 2007 that
4 A. No. 4 legislation was not passed; is that right?
5 Q. -- a number of years to develop them? 5 A, That's correct,
& A. The programs were multl-year programs. 6 Q. And you agree with me that in 2007 there
7 They were just poorly written. 7 was not a statutory requirement for DPAL to offer
8 Q. Fine. How long, when you talk about a 8 energy efficiency programs, right?
9 coliaborative, would you expect it te be lasting in 9 MR, IDZKGWSKT: Objection. That calls
10 order to perform its functions with regard to energy 10 for a legal conclusion,
11 efficiency and DSM programs? 11 To the extent you know based on your
12 A. Obviously it depends on how efficient the 12 knowledge and experience, you can answer that,
13 collaborative is, And I think one premise of your 13 A, That's difficult for me because [ know
14 question I would disagree with is almost like 14 there's -- 2007 there was still elements in Ohio
13 continuous improvement, 1 would say the collaborative 15 Revised Cede which promoted energy efficiency, so
16 would be part an ongoing process that would reinvent 16 it's not like energy efficlency was discarded by the
17  itself looking at programs, looking at future years 17  legislator in 2008 -- 2007.
18  and convenience, 18 Q. You're aware that DP&L was warking on its
19 50 I wouldn't necessarifly see an end 19  energy efficiency programs in 20077
20 date, espedially if the collaborative is being very 20 A. Honestly, I can't recall.
21 productive, 21 Q. 1t'sIn the DP&L filing. You're not
2 But in terms of 1 think your question, if 22 aware of that?
23 I'mcorrect, you're stating how long would it take 23 A. [ haven't committed the DP&L filing to
24 for a collaberative to put together programs that 24 memary.
25 would -- thak the utitily may consider in 25 Q. Well, on page 9 you say unlika Duke
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Page 86 Page 89 |

1 Energy of Ohio, when it filed its proposal, it was in i takeniton. And In fact, its carbon offsets are i
2 the middle of a rate case, wasn't it? 2 trading currently in ant/cipation of that, Se that's
3 A. No, 3 whatmy. ..

4 Q. Didn't have a distributicn rate case 4 Q. I meant to ask you earlier with regard to
S pencing? 5  the energy efficiency rider. I take from your
6 A, No, 6 testimony you are not opposed ta the concept of an
7 Q. When Duke offered what you call a 7 energy efficlency rider?

B multi-year collaboratively develaped set of programs, 8 A. No, I'm not.

2 wasn't that In response to a distribution rate case 9 Q. State on page 10, 1 think lines 9 and 10,
10 that Duke had filed in 20067 10  that "...no DSM program shared savings should be
11 A. Nao. 11 approved and included. , "

12 Q. Was OCC a signatory party to a settlemeant 12 A, What line in particulai?

13 with Duke? i3 Q. %and 10, "As argued gadier. . "

14 MR, IDZKOWSKI: In what case? 14 A. Yes, yes
15 MR, FARUKI; In that rate case. 15 Q. You said that because you think that DPSL
16 MA. IDZKOWSKI: In the 2006 rate case? 16  has Included DSM program shared savings in the rider?
17 MR. FARUKI: Yes, 17 A, DP&L did not include an exhibit, They
18 A, We were a signatcry party but that case 18 have shared savings and it's zero because they say
19 had very limited, if any, dealing with energy 19  since they haven't had any programs.

20 efficiency. 20 It wasn't -- there was no dollar amount
21 The only thing it had -- it was made -- 21 inthe rider but I beliave the mechanism of the rider
22 my recollection is that it made a determination that 22 would include when those -- when that shared savings
23 schools -- 1 think it carved out some money for 23 woauld be taken, it would be collected through a
24 schools, 24 rider, through the rider mechanism.
25 Q. Was QCC a signatory party to a settlement 25 Q. Okay, that's your understanding of how It
Page 87 Page 90

1 that required Duke o offer DSM programs and those 1 should work?

2 programs would be developed by a means of 2 A, No, that's the way my understanding based

3 collaborative process? 3 onthe testimeny of Seger-Lawson, It wasn't much --

4 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Again, in what case? 4 there wasn't much there in terms of shared savings,

5 MR, FARUKI; Any case in '06 or '07. 5 whattype.

3 MR, IDZKOWSKI: With Duke? 6 3. You saw tha schedule.

? MR, FARLUKI: With Duke, yes, sit. 7 A. It was zero. Yeah, but I'm talking about

8 A, We were a signatory party, but I would 8 the mechanism, it was very vague.

9 add that Duke filed these programs — when they filed 9 Q. Page 11, online 5 you have a sentence
10 their programs originally in January of 2006, it 10 that starts out "Third, ne other Ohio utility with an
11 wasn't a settlement. Tt wasn't a stipulation, it was 11  apggressive Smart Grid proposal. . ."

12 a pure utility filing. 12 A. That's correct.

13 And the only reason that it was 13 Q. Do I take from that that you think DP&L
14  stipulated to at the end was because the company did 14  has an aggrassive Smart Grid proposal?

15 not sae any PUCQ reaction. It stayed with the PUCO 15 A. 1believe I would say yes. You're
16 for a long time. 15 Iooking to change all the meters in ali your service
17 But initially it was on their volition, 17 territory, [ would say that's aggressive.

18 it wasn't part of the settlernent. It wasn't part of 18 . Do you have an opinion of whether that's
19  a stipulation 19  aqood idea?

20 Q. Take a logk at page 10, On page 10, line 20 A, That's the testimony of My, Pullens, OCC
21 3, you say -- you recommend CP&L's proposed rider be 21 Witness Pulfens would address Smart Grid?

22 trued up. How do you suggest that be done? 22 Q. You're not offering an opinion here in
23 A. Again, 1 think the mechanisms that 23 that case?

24 utiity could use, for example, 1 know in the Duke 24 A, I'm offering an opinion on this
25 case, for example, you have programs, you have cost 25 particylar cost recovery aspect.

Page 88 Page 91

1 estimates, and you have savings estimates, 1 Q. Cnly,

2 And alter -- when [ say "true up,” you 2 A. That's all my testimony speaks.

3 obviously want ta true up costs, you know, estimated 3 Q. You said "upon discussion with my

4 spending versus actual spending, and you also want 4 counsel, it appears clear that Revised Code Section”

5 to, the extent there’s any lost revenue or shared 5  such-and-such. Wha is this counsel?

6 savings that are impacted by the metrics that are 6 A. I've talked with the counsel in this

7 used it fost revenue, you want to make sure thase are 7 case. So Ive talked with at different times with

B based on an actual verification impact analysis or 8  [dzkowski, Poulos, and Jackie Roberts,

9  something, 9 Q. Whois it that gave this advice that
10 50 1 think that's the way T'm 10 you're talking abour?

11 recommending it. And in fact, I cite in the Duke i1 MR.. IDZKOWSKI: 1I'm gaing to object.

12 case they came back and the trued up result was £2  You're asking for specific advice from 2 specific
13 credited customers for some of their original 12 counsel?

14 collection based on their estimates 14 MR. FARUKI: That's right. And the
15 Q. Online & on page 10 you refar to "white 15 privilege is waived when you put it in testimany, If
16  tag energy efficiency or carbon offset ravenues,” 16 you want to withdraw the testimony, that's fine, But
17 What do you mean by that phrase? 17 he says here, "upon discussion with my counsel It
18 A, Okay, We had a good discussion earlier 18 appears.”

19  on renewable energy, 19 You can't hide behind the privilege if
20 Q. Yes, sir, 20 you're going to put what the advice Is and guote the
21 A.  White tags are the energy efficiency of 21 statute, Mike,

22 that, And carbon offsets are in anticipation of n MR, IDZKOWSKI: What i5 he testifying -

23 mandatory greenhouse gas federal legislation and/or 23 he's saying it's his understanding but you're asking
24 state. 24 him a specific statemant.

25 I mean, some regfons the states have 25 MR. FARUKT: Well, I'm asking broader
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1 than that, He says "upon discussion with my 1 (B)(2)(c), and you see that (B){2)(0) deals with
2 counsel." That's the basis for his opinlon. 2 construction work in progress for an electric
3 THE WITNESS: No. Letme clarify that. 3 generating facility?
4 BY MR, FARUKI: 4 MR, [DZKOWSKI: Where are you laoking?
5 Q. Go ahead. 5 MR. FARUKI: Bottom of the page.
6 A, As we talked earlier, I was invoived in 6 {Record read.)
7 this rule making. I was aware of this particular 7 Q. Correct?
8  provision in the Bill. Upon knowing that, 1 had my 8 A. That is correct, and I think the way I
3 interpretation of what that understanding was. I 9 use this In my testimony is it's an analogous type
10 wanted to bounce that understanding with my counse| 10 situation where the company is undertaking Smart
11 and we talked about It. 1t Grid, making an investment and the benefits of the
12 Q. And who was that? 12 Investment in the analogous case. So it's more of an
13 A, I'm brying ta recall. We've had 50 many 13 analogous type.
14 meetings on this case dealing with different issugs. 14 Q. That's not what your testimony says
15 Q. 1 understand. 15 though, is it?
16 A, It's one of the counselors that [ 16 Your testimony says at lines 8 and 9 -
17 mentigned. 17 let me finish my question -- that ", 143(C){(1) would
18 Q. Ang your understanding was confirmed? 18 disapprave of such a mechanism." And then you as a
19 A. [ would say that my understanding was in 19 non-lawyer cite or quote a statute for that, right?
20 line with what the counselar. . . 20 A. Yes. It was poorly written. Tt would be
21 Q. And so your point here is at . 143(C)(1) 21 more the intent.
22 asyou oplne "would disapprove of such a mechanism." 22 Q. It's not poorly written, it's incorrect,
23 You see line 97 23 isn'tit?
24 A. That's what the language says. The 24 A, Aswritten it's Incorrect.
25 language says that basically my reading is that the 25 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Let me ask, quated the
Page 93 Page 96 |
1 legislative wanted those who bore the cost of this 1 section incorrectly?
2 new technelogy to reap the rewards in terms of 2 MR, FARUKI: Mo, it's just inapplicable.
3 benefits, 3 MR. IDZKOWSKT: So that's your argument,
q Q. When you say such a mechanism is invalid 4 it's inapplicable?
5 under the statute, what mechanism were you talking 5 MR, FARUKI: T don't think it's an
6 about? 6  argument, [ think It's a fact. (B)(2)(b) is
7 A, Where do I say it's "invalid“? 7 generating facility and then {B)(2)(c) talks about a
8 Q. Well, when you say “would disapprove of 8  surcharge for the life of the generating facility
9 such a mechanism.” 1n other words, the mechanism is 9  sourced through a competitive bid pracess.
10 not allowed under the statute, 10 I mean, 1 just think you ought it
11 I'm asking you which mechanism are you 11 withdraw this.
12 referring to by the phrase "such a mechanism"? 12 MR. IDZKOWSKIL: we'll consider that, but
13 A, I'm referring to the shared savings 13 as to whether or not it's inaccurate based on hls
14 proposzl of the company where they want a 50 percent 14 understanding, if he ¢ited the statute correctly and
15  shared savings off the aperational benefits. 15 he's misunderstood it, which we're not saying he has,
16 Q. And are you aware -- I'm looking at your 16  he can answer the question or any question factually
17 quotation in the statute, Mi, Gonzalez, on line Li, 17 or his opinion about matters you'd like to ask.
18  that the phrase that contains "a surcharge under 18 But if it's asked him whether or not he's
19 division [B){2){b} or (¢} of this section," 19 incorrect legally, that's a legal conclusion which
20 A, Uh-huh, 20 he's not -- he's stated he's not giving.
21 (. That that refers to generation? Are yau 21 MR. FARUKE: I think since he says that
22 aware of that? 22 it was a quote, upon discussion with my counsel, end
23 MR, I0ZKOWSKL: What specifically are you 2% of quote, that he gat this --
24 saying refers to generation? 24 MR. IDZKOWSKI: It appears clear to me -~
25 MR, FARUKI: I'll tell you in a minute, 25 MR, FARUKI: Let me finish,
Page 94 Page 97 |-
1 He and you, if you were the one that gave him this 1 -- it was his counsel who must have B
2 advice, are flat wrong. 1f you logk at the statute. 2 misinformed him. But my point is this is simply flat
3 Q. And I'm asking you, sir, are you awarz 3 wrong and I'd ask you to think about withdrawing it,
4 that {B)(2)(b) or {c) that you are quoting on line 11 4 It's way, way off the mark.
5 refer to new generation facilities? 5 BY MR, FARUKI:
6 A Let me refrash my memory. 6 3. Let me ask you this guestion: You agree
7 MR. FARUKI: While he's looking, Mike, 7 with me that DP&L's CCEM programs are not a new
8  what you've basically done is stick a fegal argument 8  generating facility, right?
9 Inhis tesfimony. Leaving that aside, it's g A. It's a generatlon of megawatts.
10 incorrect. 10 Q. Oh, so you're saying that it's your
11 MR. IDZKOWSKI: You have a question 11 testimony here that DP&L's CCEM pregrams are t¢ be
12 pending? 12 considered a generation facility because they involve
13 MR, FARUKI: No, I'm addressing that to 13 the generation of megawatts? Is that your testimony?
t4  you while he looks up a way to get around this point. 14 A, 1was just answering your question that
15 (Exhibit marked.) 15 the CCEM to me is generation of megawatts.
16 Q. Since some time has gone by, i6 Q. S0 what is the answer to my question? Is
17 Mr. Gonzalez, without an answer to my question -- £7 it your testimony here that DP&E's CCEM programs are
18 MR. 1DZKOWSKI: What's the question 18 & generation facility because they involve the
19 pending? 19 generation of megawatts?
20 MR, FARUKI: Well, I'll withdraw it 20 A, No,
21  because he obvigusly can't answer it, 21 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Are you -- go ahead.,
22 Q. T'm going to show you the statute, It's 22 A No.
23 0OCC-- DP&L Exhibit 52, a copy of the statute, and 23 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Okay.
24 take a look at the section that you are citing on 24 (). Let me ask you atout the infrastructure
25 page 11 of your testimony, which is 143(B)(2){b} and 25 improvement rider which you begin on the bottom of
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Page 98 Page 101
1 page 11, 1 the bottam of 11, infrastructure investment.
2 A, Yes. 2 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Thank you.
3 Q. Starting maybe with line 20, you say "The 3 A, I'would say generally myself and our
4 company has proposed levelizing” this investment. 4 cffice prefers -- Is not indined towards riders. It
5 Do you understand why they proposed 5 would prefer a rate case where everything is put on
6 levelizing the investment? 6  the table and the whole issue of single issue rate
7 A, Trving to recall the testimony., 7 making. :
8 Prohably so that you have a uniform cost 8 So I think T would still have that
9 and you don't have volatility in the rider, 9  objection with any of the riders. But I would say
10 Q. Do you think that's a good goal; avoiding 10 that given the peculiarity of Smart Grid and as to
11 volatlity in the rider? 11 the extent that we would -- and I know this has come
12 A. Apain, generally speaking it could be, 12 up in different worksheps on Smart Grid that the
13 but based on my testimony, I would think in this 13 staff has proposed on net of benefits rider, I think
i4  particular case it doesn't make sense because you're 14 arideris a good place to capture a net of benefits
15 charging customers more during a period of recession 15  type situation,
16 where customers are |east likely to -- it will 16 Q. As to Smart Grid.
17 present a greater burden and hardship on customers, 17 A Carrect,
18 Q. On page 12 the basis for what you just 18 Q. And when you talked about that I think
19 said in lines 1 and 2 is that "the early years will 19 you used the phrase "the peculiarity of Smart Grid,"
20 probably coincide with the worst part of the current 20 Do you mean the size of the investment required for
21 recession." 21 i
22 Do you sea that? 22 A. No, not necessarily. Just that it's --
23 A. Yes, 23 you're incurring a cost but the cost, a traditional
24 (. So how long, since you know that or 24 Smart Grid scope type project will entail cost
25 predict that, how long will the current recession 25  savings on the utility side.
Page 99 Page 102
1 last? L Sa a rider, in a rider you can take those
2 A, You're asking me to speculate on how long 2 cost savings Into account and let it out, So that's
3 it's going to last? 3 why In particular in that sense the - it's not that
4 Q. 1think your statement on lines 1 and 2, 4 you're making an investment and your costs are
5 sir, is speculation when you say "will probably 5  remaining the same. You're making an invastment
&  coincide with the worst part of current recession,” 6 that's going to reduce the cost of some areas of your
7 In order to make that as an opinion or 7 company.
8  prediction, tell me what you believe will be the B Q. Okay, on page 12, your first
9 length of the current recession, % recommendation in your section 5 on residential
10 A, Based an my readings and discussions and 10 demand response is that DP&L utilize more of the AM1
11 T waould say that the recession, the worst part of the 11 technical capability, lines 13 and 14.
12 recession could project to run anywhere from ane to 12 A. Correct,
13 three years, as [ang as three years, 13 Q. what does that mean?
i4 Q. You're aware that that is a subject that 14 A Well, T was really referencing the
15 & lot of econarnists have differing apinians on. 15  time-ofuse program. [ think the company's position
16 A, That's correct. But 1 think there's no 16 is you're going to develop AMI smart system, Smart
17 different oplnion as to whether we're in a recession 17 Grid, and you ¢an have capability to have very
18  and that it looks like it's going to be an 18  discrete information on your customer's energy uses,
19  unpregedented recession and economists talk about it 19 and to the extent that you apply a broad time of use,
20 being a recession as deep as the 1929 Great 20 we would - we like -- I like the peak time rebate
21 Depression, 21 program because I think that uses the capability of
22 So it is -- you can argue how many years 22 the AMI system,
23 this or that, T think the peint I wanted to bring up 23 But I think there should be more
24 is this is a very serious recession and it's a 24 offerings for residential consumers so that -- and we
25  recession that is not -~ is unlike the last three or 25  think a peak pricing program would be semething that
Page 100 Page 103
1 four recessions in the country. 1 would be -- a voluntary peak pricing program would be
2 Q. But you're only speculating when you try 2 offered.
3 to predict what will be the worst part of the 3 Q. When you recommend that DPAL utillze more
4 recession, isn't that right? 4 of the AMI technical capability, that really is a
5 MR, IDZKOWSKL: I'm sorry, you're asking 5 reference to your time-of-use discussion that
6  him a question that's characterizing it as predicting 6 follows.
7 and specylating. What are you asking him exacty? ? A. Correct,
8 MR, FARUKL: Read my question back, This 8 Q. The study that you quote at the bottern of
9 one didn't include predicting, Mike. 9 page 12 and first line of page 13, where was that
10 (Record read.} 10 done? In other words, what utilities or what part of
11 Q. Isn'tit true that your statement 11 the country?
12 "probably coincide with the worst part of the current 12 A. T believe the first part is based on a
13 recession” is speculative on your part? 13 survey of 17 utilities and I think they vary from
14 A. Tdon't really think it's speculative 14 east/west coast, And there may be a midwest company
15 because we're in 8 recession now, it's getting worse, 15  in there in the Illinois area,
16 and the company's looking to recover through this 16 Q. Da you know If it was -- if the customer
17 mechanisim in these early years. 17 base that was surveyed or that was involved in the
18 Q. Simifar question to what I asked you on a 18  study was similar to DP&L's?
16 different rider with regard to the infrastructure 19 A, Well, there were 17 studles, so.
20 improvement ridet, as DP&L has called it. You don't 20 Q. Oh, this is a survey of different
21 have a problem with that as a concept; is that 21 studies?
22 corect? 22 A. Correct,
23 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Are you still on page 12, 23 Q. [3see, Do you have a copy of that
24 Charlie? 24 survey?
25 MR. FARUKI: 11 and 12 really, Starts at 25 A. Yes, I do.
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1 MR. FARUKI: Il make & request for 1 soon, Because that alse want on through the
2 that, 2 development of these particular benchmarks there were
3 Q. On page 13, line 1 you talk about another 3 estimates of - I'm sure I've reviewed some and had
4 study, and the same question there: What was the 4  some --
5 customer base or part of the country involved in that 5 Q. So are you aware there are not sufficient
6 one? & solar resources in the state of Chla to accommodate
7 A, Yes, that's actually the Gulf program In 7 your interpretation of this Ravised Cade Section?
8 Florida I believe. And it's a study that was 8 MR. IDZKOWSKI: I'mv going to object that
9 conducted by the Southern Company but It was 9 this question contains facts not in evidence in this
10 conducted in Florida, 10 case. And it appears to be argumentative,
11 Brian White actually the company - the 1 MR, FARUKI: Because of your first
12 person responsible for the study was -- appeared i2  objection Yl withdraw it.
13 before the Commissian in the 2005 Energy Policy Act 13 Q. Let me ask it this way. Have you done
i4  proceedings and they were on the panel 1 think 14 any analysis to determine whether there is sufficient
15  subsequent to the company panel on rate design. 15  solar resources in Ohio se that the Interpretation
16 So that's the particular study. 16  vou're suggesting on page 14 can be met?
17 Q. Do you have a copy of that? 17 A. 1 would say generally given my
8 A. 1have -- it's a PowerPoint, Andit's & 1B understanding of what the megawatt hours per year in
19  bunch of PowerPoints on that. 19 a half on -- it's a small half of a percent I think
20 MR, FARUKI; I'll make a request for 20 of the total renewable requirement.
21 that. 21 And based on the development of the solar
22 Q. That was a summer peak company? 22 industry, the incentives that have been recently
23 A. That's correct. Florida, yes, I would 23 promulgated In first the recovery, the TARP plan and
24 say it's summer peak. 24 looking forward on the stimulus package, and 1 would
25 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Can we go off the record, 25  disagree with your characterization. I think it
Page 105 Page 108
b (Off the record.) 1 could be met with 50 percent,
2 Q. Back on the record. 2 Q. For 20097
3 A. You may have that because they were -- 3 A, For-- to the extent. that programs
4 you were part of that. They handed that out at the 4 haven't been developed and are being developed, 2009
5 Energy Policy Act at the workshops that were had in 5  might be a challenge. But1 think going forward it
6 1500, 05-1500. 6  would be lass of a challenge.
7 Q. I'l just make a request for it if you 7 And by that [ mean there's other programs
8  know you've got it, B8 that are being developed that would stimulate the
9 30 down to ine I think ¥'s lines 9, 10, 9 solar market in Ohio. There's vtilities, there's
10 11 where you are making a recommendation about 19 education programs, there's universities that are
11  developing these rates through a collaborative 11 developing the technical skill, the installation
12 process within six months, 12  skill, Sothere's a lot going on in the solar end In
13 A, Yes, 13 Ohio,
14 Q. You're aware that in erder to implement 14 Q. But you've not done a calculation that
15  these rates, the billing system will need to be 15  would indicate - or have you done a calculation that
16 changed? 16 would show or demonstrate that there is enough solar
17 A, I'm aware that a lot needs to take place 17 in Ohio to meet your interpretation of the statute?
18 before these types ¢f rates would be operational. 18 MR. IDZKOWSKL: In what time frame are we
19 I'm taking about getting together designing and -- 19 talking?
20 you have the specifications of what the Smart Grid is 20 MR. FARUKI: Any time frame. I'm asking
21 or what you anticipate the Smart Grid would be, S¢ I 21  iFhe's done a calculation.
22 think you could deslgn -- start designing and working 22 MR. TDZKOWSKI: Well, any tme frama
23 onsome upfront work. 23 could be in the future which could broaden the
24 Q. I'mjust clarifying you're not suggesting 24 question immensely because there could be
25  though these rates go into affect within six months. 25  development.
Page 106 Page 109
1 A. WMo, 1 MR. FARUKI: We'll get to that. I know
2 Q. Okay. with regard to your renewable 2 he'd like to speculate akout the future federal
3 energy section that begins on line 14, you do not 3 funding but I'm asking a slmple question,
4 have or are not sponsoring & plan that you say could 4  BY MR, FARUKI:
5  be used for DP&L to meet these requirements; Is that 5 Q. Hawve you done a calculation that would
6 right? © demonstrate that what you are suggesting on page 14
7 A, The only recommendation I'm making in 7 isrealistic for Ohio?
8 that regard is the discussion we had earlier about ] MR. IDZKOWSKI: And in particular what
9 residential and small commercial program to -- 9 are you talking about on page 147
10 Q. Oh, yes, okay. Cther than that, 10 MR. FARUKI: The same subject where he
11 A, No, 11  has said that 50 percent of the solar requirement
12 Q. Page 14, beginning on line 5, I had a 12 should come from within the state of Ohio,
13 couple of questions about the sofar requirement that 13 Q. You've either done a calculation or you
14 vyou reference, 14 haven't.
15 You suggest that 50 percent of solar i5 A, Tm just trying to recall because a lot
16 requirement should come from within the state of i6  of this work was done during last year when we were
17 Ohio; is that right? 17 talking about these particular mandates and what was
18 A, That's correct. t8  going on.
19 Q. Keep your voice up for her, 19 1 believe looking at the amount, the
20 A. That's correct, 20 50 percent amount, given an assumption @bout how many
pal Q. Through all of your research have you 21 households it would take, how many businasses,
22 calculabed how much the solar requirement is for the 22 commercial businesses and how much we obviously have
23 four Ohio elactric distribution utilitles for 20097 23 the area to generate those kind of savings.
24 A. [ befieve I have. [ just don't have -- [ 24 Se it's just a matter of in the future
25  believe I've seen those calculations or estimates and 25 whether the market is going to develop to deliver
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1 those energies. I mean, that's the guestion. 1 determination --
2 Are you asking me whether there is enough 2 Q. Do you have a calculation you can give
3 solar installation to do that in Ohio? My answer is 3 me?
4 yes, 4 A, Idon't know if I could retrieve
5 Q. Tl ask that calculation then. 5 something. I would itave to review what those
5 A. 1didn't say [ mede a calculation, 1 & estimates were for every vear, what that would be,
7 said I'm sure 1 came acrgss calculations when this 7 and then how many homes we talked about earlier, how
8  was being discussed durlng the hearing, During the 8 many sguare footage on a Wal-Mart of somebody, some
9 legislation. 9  of these commerdial establishments where salar would
10 Q. Sir, I'm asking a simple question. I'm 10  be the most likely place where solar would be
11 entitled to a yes or no answer, If you want to 11 installed in Ohio.
12 explain it, that's fine. But don’t dance around with 12 There's a lot of exposed rooftop and when
13 e, 13 we were pushing this, I'm sure I've seen a lot of
14 I asked you twice now and 'l ask you a 14 documentation and a lot of during that peried
15  third time, have you dane a calculation? If you've 15 reading, looking at what happened, what was going on
16  done one, tell me that, If you have not done one, 16 in California and so on.
17 tell me that and I'l move on. 17 Thats where my general thrust Is in this
i3 MR. [DZKOWSKT: 1'm going to abject to i8 respect. But is there a specific study that T did?
19 the argumentative tane that's being demonstrated in 19  The answer is no specific study that I can just hand
20 this deposition. [ think he can -- aur witness can 20  over to you that shows X amount of this is the
21 answer the guestion if he understands it, 21 requirement, this is the solar Installatien In Ohio,
22 But emphasizing an issue 1 don't think is 22 this is the amount of rooftop and area that you would
23 going to hefp him answer it in any way. 23 need, these may be the economics incentives that it
24 MR. FARUKI: Do you need to talk to him, 24 would take to drive that, 50 on and so forth,
25 Mike? This -- I'm asking a simple question, this Is 25 MR. FARUKI: I'll make a request for
Pagzs 111 Page 114
1 the third time I've done it, 1 these astimates he said he reviewed, whatever those ’
2 BY MR. FARUKI: 2 are,
3 Q, Have you dgne a calculation, that's all [ 3 Q. Take a look at page 15. On page 15 you
4 want to know. 4 begin by quoting from a brief filed by the Ohio
5 MR. IDZKOWSKI: He thought he answered it 5  Consumer and Enviranmental Advocates.
6  but then you asked him if you could have a copy of it 6 A. That's right.
7  and he said he does -- I think he said he's done that 7 Q. Did you write that brief or that section
8  calculation but does he have a document that he can 8  of it that you're quoting here?
9 give you. 9 A. Ihadinput, Idont know IF It's -- 1
10 we would be glad to provitde any documents 10 had input an that particular section because it was
11 you request, but maybe the question and the 11 dealing with the third set of rules,
12 disconnect here is can he turn over a document that 12 Q. And this was a brief that was filed in
13 he has on this, 13 the rule making proceeding.
14 MNow, 1 understoad him to say he did an 14 A, Ttisin response to the third set of
15  analysis but does he have that, maybe you should ask 15  rules, yes,
16 himif he has a copy of the document, 16 Q. And this brfef is or the section of the
17 MR. FARUKIL: T don't think I've gotten a 17  brief that you quate beginning on line 4 contains the
1B sguare answer yet ta the answer did he do a 18  analysis of what the energy efficiency benchmarks in
19 calculation. I asked him that and he stares off for 19 the statute require?
20 awhile and then he starts telling me about things 20 A, Yes.
21 he's read, [ still need a square, honest answer to 21 Q. Is this what you are relying on for -- as
22 my question. 22 the basis for the opinion on pages 14 and 157
3 MR. IDZKOQWSKI: we'd be glac to give you 23 A, This is very specific fo one element
24 square, honest answers but we can do that without 24 of -- 14 and 15 deals with a number of issues, This
25 getting emotional about It. 25  just deals with the fact that's more in line with my
Page 112 Page 115
1 MR. FARUKI: I'm not getting emotional, ¥ second peint, which starts at line 18,
2 T' being persistent, 2 Q. Of page?
3 MR, IDZKOWSKI: That's fine. That's 3 A. 14, Butit says "Second.” 5o it just
4 cerainly fing, 4 deals with lines 15 through line 11 on page 15,
5 BY MR, FARUKI: 5 Q. 1 gotcha.
6 Q. I'll ask my question ggain. ] So the basis for the ppinion that starts
7 Have you done a calculation? I'm not 7 on page 14, line 13, then is stated in page 15, lines
8  asking whether you have it yet, I'm asking if you've 8 2ta 11; is that right?
9  done a calculation. 9 A. The basis of the opinien is the argument
10 A, 1 balieve, and again, I'm not trying to 10  that's contained In that language.
11 dance around the question. 1 really have thought 11 Q. Yes, sir. Thank yau,
12 about this, 12 MR. IDZKOWSKI: Did you say page 4 or 147
13 And again, based on the solar 13 MR. FARUKI: 14,
14 installation in the Qhio, based on the number of 14 THE WITNESS: The bottom of 14,
15 customers, based on whatever number of toofteps are 15 MR. FARUKI: He and I both sald 14.
16 on solar, because I think solar in Ohio wauld be 16 MR, IDZKOWSKI: Thank you.
17 mainly distributed generation solar as opposed Lo out 17 Q. Go on to line 13 than,
18  waest big solar farms, 18 A, Yes.
19 Bagsed on the number of customeys, based 19 Q. Is it your understanding that DP&L has to
20 the amounk of rocftops, based on the solar 20 physicaily take delivery of the energy in order to
21 installation, S0 percent could -- you have 21 meet the renewable targets in 5B-2217
22 4.5 million residential customers, you have a lat 22 A, AsTstate In my testimony, the staff in
23 of -- s0 I've -- T want to say I don't have a 23 the proposed rules have defined the term "deliverable
24 rigorous analysis, but based on my reading and 24 into the state" as meaning that the electricity
25 looking and doing the numbers, [ recall that the 25  originates from a facility within the states
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Pags 116 Page 119 |:
1 contiguous to Ohio, and so an and so forth. And that 1 compatison. The comparison is we have a mandatory
2 the electricity could be physically delivered into 2 market and we're looking for the cheapest price
3  the state. 3 within the parameters of the mandatory market.
4 Q. 5o "could be" means it's possible ta do 4 Q. Onpage 17, line 1, you talk about
§ it but it doesn't have to be physicatly detiverad. 5 providing for a "stable and long-term revenue
& You agree with that? &  stream.”
7 A, Yeah, let me just. . . 7 What duration are you talking about
8 So it's clear, that it originates from a 8 there?
9 facility within the state contiguous to Ghio, May 9 A. Again, I would think in the ten to 15
10 include electricity. 10 year range.
11 Yes, so it is a physical -- they're 11 Q. How is the market price set?
12  saying that abviously if it's contiguous o the 12 A.  Well, there are a number of items there.
13 state, there's a physical. But if it's not 13 ‘fou could set out an RFP that has -- that will
14 physicatly contiguaus to the state, that that 14 develop pricing, will ask peaple to bid on pricing
£5 electricity could be physically transported. So, 15 gver that term and they're going to have to take -
16 yes, that seems to be a requirement. 16  make assumptions on what's going to happen with
t7? MR, FARUKI: Off the record, 17 legislation, what's going to happen with everything.
18 (Off the record.) 18 And based on all the information and zll
19 MR, FARUKI: Back on the record. 19 the bidders, they'll make a determination on what
20 Q. On page 16, lines 1 through 13, you're 20 kind of price -- there may be escalation clauses in
21 talking about your recommendation regarding a 21 the price and s¢ on. So that's one way to do It
22 customer-sited renewable energy program? 22 Q. TIs that what you suggest?
23 A, Correct, 23 A. That may be, yeah, that could be a
24 Q. Do you have a projecticn of what such a 24 suggestion,
25  program would cost to administer? 25 A program -- I'm trying to recall if -
Page 117 Page 120 |
1 A, As we talked earlier, the design of the 1 let's see if I said it here.
2 program would look to mitigate those costs. So 2 This would be another area where we would
3 there's witys you can design a program 5o it°s less 3 like to wark collaboratively with the company
4 administrative intensive, so we're very cognizant of 4 Q. Do you have an cpinion as to how the
5 that cost and try to minimize that cost, & price should be set? Or is that somathing you think
6 Q. But you don't have an estimate. 6 needs to be hashed out In a collaborative?
7 Farther down the page still an 15, I'm 7 A. 1 have -- the main opinion is I want the
8 Interested In having you explain an lines 14 and 15 8  distinction I drew eariter; market price versus
9 whal you mean by "at no less than the Ohio mandatory 9 administrative price. Just somebody picking out 8
10 market based rate.” 10 price.
11 A, Chay. 11 So I think that's -- starting with that
12 Q. Can you tellme -- 12 fundamental aspect 1 think that starts the discussion
13 A, And Itry to -- I have a footnote dealing 13 and puts boundaries around the price.
14 with that because I know it could be misinterpreted. 14 MR. FARUKI: Off the record.
15 And basically the idea is that I'm not 15 (OFf the record.)
16  advacating for some kind of administratively set rate 16 MR. FARUKI: [ think that's all 1 have.
17 or regulatory set rate. I want to depend on the 17 (Signature not waived.)
18  market to set that rate. 18 (Deposition concluded at 12:55 p.am.)
19 But I want to make the distinction 19 ---
20 between a voluntary market which the prior Ohio 20
21 prepricing programs were priced at and the new 21
22 mandatory market that's being developed because of 22
23 the Ohio solar requirements or renewable 23
24 requirements, 24
25 So if you look at states that are 25
Page 118 Page 121
1 mandatery markets, the price of the REC is usually 1 State of Chio i
2 higher, everything else being equal, than the cast of 3 Countyef ;58 \
3 @& REC ar the price of 8 REC in voluntary market 3 1, Wilzon Gonzalez, do hereby certify that 1
4 Q. Do you agree with the area that RECs have read the foregaing transcript of my dzpositian
5 should be acquired at the least cost possible? * ?AZTJFJ&?:E e e wth
6 A. They should be acquired at the least 5 form or substance, if any, it is true and correct.
7 market cost possible based an the market, that ?
B particular market.
9 So 1 wouldn't 2gree with you if you meant 8 Witson Gonzalez
10 you could get a REC from Californla, from Texas or 9 [ do hereby certify that the foregeing
11 from semewhere or use a voluntary market very cheap, " transcript of the deposition of Wilson Gonzalez was
" y o submitted to the witness for reading and sigaing;
12 like the Ohio green pricing programs. that after he had slated to the undersigned Notary
13 And so for B green pricing program, that 11 Public that he had read and examined his depasition,
14  made sense because that was a voluntary market, For 2 he signed the same in my presente an the day
15 a mandatory market like the market we're entering I 3 '
16 woulkd say within that market we should try to be in
17 compliance with the definitions and the rules that :g Netary Fublic
18 eventually come out that we should look for the -- 16 My commission expires
19 obviously should be a market price. 17 .-
20 And by definition 1 should say 1a
21 competitive market would give you the lowast price, ;3
22 Q. Do you think the mandatory market base 2
23 rate would be the lowest rate? 2
24 A, T'm saying it's going to be higher than a gi
25  wvoluntary rate, But I'm saying that's not the F1
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Lruth In the cause aforesald; that e testfmony was
Laken down by me In stenotypy In the presence of said
viltness, alterwards transcribed upen a computer; thal
the foreqolng is a true and corneet transcript of the
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I certify that I am not 2 relative, employee,
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